TScore



User Guide

This document includes features introduced at TScore vI 0.1.76



TScore is a registered trademark



TScore User Guide

Contents

1	Int	roduction3
2	TS	core Overview4
3	Sco	oring a Competition7
3	3.1	The Welcome Screen7
3	.2	The Scoring Screen
	3.2.	1 Choosing a Class and Competitor8
	3.2.	2 Entering Scores9
	3.2.	3 Changing Scores10
	3.2.	4 Changing to another Competitor:10
	3.2.	5 Clearing all scores for a round11
	3.2.	6 Changing the list order11
	3.2.	7 Incomplete or Non-Qualifying Routines11
	3.2.	8 The Final12
	3.2.	9 Withdrawing a Competitor12
	3.2.	10 Copy and paste a set of scores12
	3.2.	11 Moving scores for multiple entrants13
	3.2.	12 Time of Flight, Penalty and Bonus Scores13
3	3.3	Printing 15
	3.3.	1 Printing the Results15
	3.3.	2 Printing Checklists
	3.3.	3 Printing Certificates16
	3.3.	4 Withdraw or Reinstate Competitors18
	3.3.	5 Removing a Competitor18
3	8.4	Saving and Exporting all of the Results 18
3	8.5	Connecting to a Different Competition 19
3	8.6	Deleting a Competition 21
4	Cro	eating a Competition 22
4	.1	Competition Entry Forms 23
	4.1.	1 Multi-Discipline Forms24
	4.1.	2 Setting Club Details25
4	.2	How to set up a competition26
4	.3	Processing entry forms27
4	.4	Club Names
4	.5	Editing the Timetable:
	4.5.	1 Basic Timetabling29
	4.5.	2 Two 'Warmup' Trampolines30
	4.5.	3 Identify Timetable Conflicts
	4.5.	4 Multi-Day Events
4	.6	Reviewing the Entrants 31
4	.7	Setting the Start Order 32
4	.8	Emailing entrants and clubs
5	Ch	anging competitor details

5.1	Changing start order and flights37
5.2	Checking and Changing Teams
5.3	Creating a Programme and Checklists 40
5.4	Changes and late entries 40
5.5	Protecting the database 40
5.6	Importing a simple list of entrants
5.7	Configuring Classes43
5.8	Editing Classes
5.8	1 Flights
5.8	2 Saving and Reusing Class Definitions
5.9	Changing Age Groups 49
5.10	Enhanced Qualifying Score definition 49
5.11	Editing Clubs50
5.1	1.1 Email settings for athletes51
Prog	gram Preferences 52
Ηοι	w entry forms and manual changes are handled
Cor	ntrol some aspects of TScore display53
Jud	ging panels53
Jud	ging panels
IVIIS Driv	cellaneous settings
6 RI	unning a Competition 56
6 1	Printing Results and Certificates 57
6.2	Checklist Template 60
6.2	Exporting Posults 60
6.4	Pagualification Papels 62
6.5	DMT and Tumbling 62
0.5	Acrobatic Cympostics
6.7	Actobatic Gymnastics
0.7	Artistic Composition
0.0	Artistic Gymnastics
7 IN	Stallation and First Use
7.1	Computer Requirements
7.2	Collection Services
7.3	Installation Sequence
7.4	POSIgreSQL Database Installation 69 1 BostaraSQL SERVER Installation 60
7.4.	TScore Installation 72
7.5	Creating Vour Eirst Competition 72
7.0	Creating four First Competition
8 He	۶ip!/۵

1 Introduction

Welcome to the TScore User Guide. This manual will help you find you way around the TScore program so that you can use its features to best effect.

TScore[®] was developed by an overworked trampoline competition organiser who was certain that there had to be an easier way to do things than all of the manual processes needed to manage the entrants before and during competitions when using existing scoring software.

The emphasis throughout its design has been to keep it as intuitive as possible, since a high proportion of its users will have had minimal previous experience of computer scoring. In regional trampolining competitions, training of completely new recorders has taken under 5 minutes. Existing users of other systems have needed no more than a few words to get them started. Queries during the competitions have been minimal, with a very low number of recording errors.

TScore supports Individual and Synchronized trampolining, DMT and Tumbling. You can also use TScore for Artistic Gymnastics. As this is different in a number of respects from trampoline and tumbling, there is a separate user guide for Gymnastics. We are also trialling Acrobatic Gymnastics and Pole Sports.

This manual is split into a number of sections. It isn't necessary to understand the entire system just to do one job (such as scoring), so you may skip directly to the section of interest to you – each section is intended to be self-contained.

In order to make it more accessible, the manual has been assembled in 'reverse order'! This isn't as daft as it sounds, since the majority of users will be put in front of a fully loaded and configured competition system, so they only need to know how to score. The next section tells you how to set up and manage a competition, whilst the final section tells you how to install the software and its components.

The sections are as follows:

- 1. **TScore Overview** This tells you what TScore can do, but not how!
- 2. Scoring a Competition This is the guide for Computer Recorders at competitions
- 3. Creating a Competition This is for the Competition Organisers
- *4.* **Installation and Configuration** *This section is for your IT expert to set up the computers and software in the first place*

Throughout this manual there are useful hints, indicated with a 'light bulb' symbol:



X

and the occasional bit of techno-babble to keep us anoraks happy, indicated thus:

Some of the screen shots in this manual may be slightly different from your version – you should still recognise them though. If all else fails, just try a few things in the program – it is very forgiving and should let you know if you are about to break anything!



2 TScore Overview

TScore makes the task of organising and running a trampoline competition much easier. It helps you at all stages of setting up and running a trampoline competition -

Competition Setup:

- Set the competition Name, Venue and Date
- Set the competition rules for scoring and tie breaks (FIG, USAG) for each class
- Set the classes and disciplines (up to 600 classes per event, TRA, SYN, TUM, DMT, ACR, POL)
- Define Qualification / Mobility / Relegation scores, places or percentages for each class
- Should each class have a final, how many rounds or passes
- Should finals be 'zeroed'
- Time per entrant to compete / warmup including 2-bed running adjustments
- Run multiple flights (up to 11 per class)
- Predefined class descriptions for UK (BG, BSGA) and USA competition structure
- Save / Load class definitions from text files
- Decide the number of judges and panels
- Time of flight, bonus and difficulty scores for each class
- Personalise the results and export file formats
- Create your own certificate templates
- Run multi-region/state events with separate results

Entry Collection:

- Collecting competition entries in a consistent format
- Excel forms for entries and officials
- Includes optional competitor number (e.g. BG number) and date of birth
- Automatic DoB to age group calculations per grade / level
- Male, Female or mixed gender classes
- Team designations
- Payment calculations and sign-off sheet
- Single sheet entries for TRA/SYN/DMT/TUM
- Multi-sheet entry sheets if preferred
- Predefined 'Clubs' lists for easy completion of all details
- Email contacts loaded from file for automated notifications
- Alternative 'flat file' competitor entry lists
- Import csv files for entrants including BG GymNet and USAG formats
- Manual entry and alterations



TScore User Guide

Entry Processing and Timetabling:

- Reads and loads entry forms into the competition database
- · Works out how many trophies you will need and creates the engraving plate text
- Calculates an initial timetable for you
- Graphically edit the timetable just a five minute job
- Timetable up to 8 panels
- Join classes into single flights for timetabling
- Fully adjustable timings for warmup and compete per class / level
- Automatic warmup time adjustment for 2-bed panels
- Produces printed copies of the overall and individual panel timetables
- Generates a draft programme running order for you
- · Lets you rapidly search and edit entries directly in the competition database
- Sets a random start order for all classes with one click
- Generates checklists for Marshals and Judges
- Generates manual scoring sheets
- Reload entries with Merge / Replace options to keep up with all those late entries!
- Merge small classes or split large ones into flights
- Email full or partial lists of entrants to each competitor with message and attachments
- Interactive 'Team Editor' for rapid checking and assignment of entrants to teams
- 'Club Editor' lets you change club long/short name and emails in one go
- 'Club Editor' lets you see how many have competed and had certificates printed

Scoring the Competition:

- Single screen operation
- List the classes by panel
- One click to change competitors
- Warnings if you haven't saved the current competitor's scores
- Colour coding to show new and modified scores
- Undo and Save options plus 'Autosave'
- Automatic correction of common typing errors
- Warnings if scores differ too much
- Display of total scores as you enter each judge
- Add, Remove, Withdraw, Reinstate entrants
- Copy and paste sets of scores
- Shuffle scores up and down the list of entrants
- Calculates individual and team results
- Complies with FIG or USAG code of points for tie-breaks
- Time of flight recording to FIG requirements
- Horizontal Displacement recording to FIG requirements (electronic and manual)
- Print checklists for marshals and the superior judge
- Print manual recording sheets single or multi-line
- Print individual and team results
- Print personalised certificates with scores and positions

TScore User Guide

Managing the Competition:

- A Competition Status screen to track the progress of the event
- Easy to use, rapid searching and sorting let you find an entrant in a few keystrokes or clicks
- Simple, direct update of entrants with confirmation screens
- Records the time of each change, so viewing programs can show the latest scores
- Companion program 'VScore' provides continuous unattended display of the latest results
- VScore can cycle through up to 3 TScore databases automatically
- VScore can filter each display by panel or discipline
- VScore can publish live results as structured HTML to a website folder
- Export results to Excel including BG numbers and optional date of birth
- Complex multiple qualifying conditions are handled (scores and percentage placings)
- Automatic highlighting of qualifying and relegated competitors
- Save competition database to file
- Load competition database from file
- Supports Individual and Synchronised Trampoline, DMT and Tumbling
- Up to 4 passes for DMT / TUM
- Two qualifying rounds plus final for TRA / SYN
- Separate or combined results for multiple regions / states

This is all achieved through a very forgiving graphical user interface that has been designed for ease of use and flexibility.

The following sections of the manual guide you through how to use the program from the viewpoint of a Computer Recorder, a Competition Organiser and finally the IT Systems person responsible for installing and configuring the system.

3 Scoring a Competition

For Computer Recorders

This may be the first time you've had to do computer recording at a competition, or you may have used other programs before and this all looks a bit new and scary.

Either way, don't panic! TScore is very easy to use and will guide you through the process. If you are about to do something irreversible or unusual, it will warn you, explain what your options are and let you decide how to proceed.

Normally, the computer will already be set up and running the program, ready for you to start. If it isn't though, simply click the TScore icon on the computer desktop to start the program.

3.1 The Welcome Screen

When you start the program, you will see the main 'welcome' screen like this:

The current competition name, venue and date are shown at the top of the screen.

If the competition name and date are not set correctly, or there are some buttons missing from the screen, check with the competition organiser, as you may not be connected to the correct competition database

👛 TScore - Trampoline Compe	tition Organiser and Scoring Proc	gram			
Current Competition					
Server: VIF	RG08	Database :	nwemclub2016octresu	ilts	
	NW East N	vidlands Clubs		Cha	nge Database
Mell	lish SC	1	st October 2016	(
٤	TScore simplifies th It does entry proces	he job of setting up ssing, timetabling, t	and running a trampol	ine or gymnastics of luction and of cours http://ts	competition se scoring core.co.uk
Start a New Competition	Edit th Competit	tion	Score this	Hel	р
Import / Export	Competition	Status	Competition	Exi	t
Version 10.0.0 14/01/2	017 17:41:26 Licer	ised to CHRIS until 30-	Apr-2030 XL	Chris Ec	dwards ©2007-17

As a recorder, you should only need to use the 'Score this Competition' option from this screen. When you click this button, the scoring screen will appear, as shown on the next page.

3

At most competitions more than one computer is used to record scores – one per panel is normal. The computers are therefore networked together so they can share a single database on a 'server' computer, in which all of the results are recorded. When you start the program you may have to use the 'Connect' option to choose the server and database you want to connect to. The most recent server and database are remembered for the next time the program runs. Any of the recording computers in your network can be a server – you do not need a dedicated PC for this purpose.



3.2 The Scoring Screen

💪 Demonstration Ev	vent My Sports Hall 1	st February 2017						- 0	×
Select Panel and	Class		2 Entra	nts	Panel 3 9.40			Trampolii	ne 🚺
Event Trampoli	ne - Pane	All - TRA I	evel 2 - W	omen 13+	•	Finish Pri	nt Edit	Help	Exit
Gymnast 1	L 🔊 Luc	y Catling			Rank o	rder 🗖			_
Show All Entrants	Che	eky Cruis	ers		Auto	save 🔽		Withdr	aw
Move Scores					Qualifying So	ore 42.0 : 45.0		R and	
E	1 E2 E3	E4 HD1	HD2	HD	Bonus Penalty Moves	Execution	Total	Overall	Posn
Clear Set 7.	.6 7.6 7.7	7.8 8.7	8.8	8.75	0.6	24.05	24.650	24.650	
Vol									
Name			Clu	ub		Start Set	Vol	Total Posr	n Witl
Lucy Catling	/		Ch	eeky Cruisers eeky Cruisers		24	.65	24.65 1	
	·							1 1	─ ≻(

This is the screen that you should see while you are recording scores. It has 3 main sections – top, middle and bottom. The middle section (B) where you enter the scores will change according to the format of the competition and even each individual class within the event. Two, three or four rounds, different numbers of judges for each panel and discipline, optional tariff, bonus, time of flight etc. will all be taken care of for you.

If the display is incorrect, you can use the Preferences option (from the main Edit Competition screen) to enable or disable specific features (such as changing the number of form judges on your panel).

3.2.1 Choosing a Class and Competitor

Terminology: A '**panel**' is a set of judges, officials and one or more trampolines on which one gymnast (or synchro pair) will compete at a time. A '**class'** is a set of competitors having a common grade or level, gender and age group. A '**flight'** is a set of competitors who perform as a group, sharing a warmup on a panel before competing. Flights are normally 10 to 18 gymnasts, and may comprise more than one class (if the classes are small). Conversely, a single large class may be split into a number of flights.

The top section of this screen (A) lets you choose the class to score from a pull-down list. You can filter by 'event' (aka 'discipline'), then by Panel, then by Class. You can either choose a single class, or show 'All Classes'. When scoring, it is best to choose just the class you need.

You can use the buttons to the right to print results, lists and certificates, edit competitors' details or to return to the main screen.

It's a good idea to set the panel from the first drop-down on the screen, so that only those classes on your panel are listed.

When you choose a class, the list of entrants appears in the bottom section of the screen (C). Here, you can see their names, club, panel, 'start order', the currently recorded scores for each round and their overall position. To the right of each row is the 'Withdrawn' indicator.



The details of the first competitor in the class will be shown in the middle section of the scoring form. To choose a different competitor to score, simply click on their row in the list.

If you click on the header of each column, TScore will sort the list by that column. Click again to sort in reverse order and a 3rd time to reset the order.

The middle section of this screen (B) contains the information for the competitor you have chosen from the list. You see their name, club and the currently recorded individual scores.



If you double-click on the competitor name, you can being typing the name of a particular person. This is especially useful for R&C where the order the gymnasts preset in can be quite random. The search will return matching names in the currently selected class (so select All Classes to search the whole event)

3.2.2 Entering Scores

To enter scores, position the cursor in the box for the first judge of the round you are scoring and enter the scores as the Chair of the panel reads them out.

You can set the cursor to the box you want by doing any of the following:

- Clicking the box with the mouse
- Using the 'Tab' key on your keyboard
- Using the 'Arrow' keys on your keyboard

You only need to put the numbers in. Zeroes and decimal points will be inserted intelligently by TScore (although it won't object if you do decide to enter them).

Example																
If the scores are you can press the following keys:-	7	7.6	,	7.4	,	7.0	,	7.5,	7	7.7	and	the	e di	ifficul	ty	is 1.5,
	7	6	tab	7	4	tab	7	tab	7	5	tab	7	7	tab	1	5

If you need to enter a score less than 1.0, simply put a zero or '.' in front of it: 04 is 0.4 for example.

Common typing errors are corrected for you - "76." or ".76" will be interpreted as "7.6"

As each new score is entered, it is shown in BLUE on the form. The "Save" and "Undo" buttons will also appear, and the totals will update according to the usual scoring rules.

Click the 'Tab' key on your keyboard to move to the next judge, 'Shift'+'Tab' for the previous judge.

When the scores for a competitor have been entered, you may click the 'Save' button to save the changes. Alternatively, simply pick another competitor, click on the Next button (or the 'Enter' key when you are in the last box on a row) to move to the next competitor. In each case you will be asked to confirm whether to save the scores you have just entered.



Before it saves any scores, the program will check that they are complete and sensible. If you have missed any scores out, it will ask you to confirm this. It will also ask you to confirm the scores if they differ by one whole point or more.

💪 Inconsisten	ty in Scores	×							
Warning - The scores you have entered don't look quite right!									
	The form scores differ by 1.0 or more in round 1								
	Save these scores anyway - they are correct Do not save these scores yet - I will fix them								

If you have unsaved changes, the Exit button will be disabled until you either 'undo' or 'save' the scores.

3.2.3 Changing Scores

If you have made a mistake in entering the scores, it is very easy to change them. The method is exactly the same as entering scores - you simply position the cursor in the score you want to change.

You can use the delete, backspace and arrow keys within each score.

When you first tab into a box, its entire content will be selected, so you can just type the new value in directly if you wish.

When you change an existing score, it will be shown in GREEN. The Save and Undo buttons will also appear.

Click Save to save the revised scores or Undo to revert to the original scores.

3.2.4 Changing to another Competitor:

To change competitors, you may do any of the following:

- Click the Previous or Next arrows
- Click on a name in the table
- Press 'Enter' in the last input box for a round

If you have unsaved changes to the current competitor, TScore will ask whether you want to save or discard your changes:





TScore User Guide

You must now choose whether to:

0

- Save the scores and continue to the competitor you have chosen
- Ignore the 'change competitor' request and return to score the current competitor
- Abandon the unsaved scores and move to the new competitor

If you check the **Autosave**, or **Don't ask me again** box your changes will just be saved automatically when you change to a different competitor. It will however always ask for confirmation of any possible typing errors or omissions.

3.2.5 Clearing all scores for a round

If you want to remove all of the scores for this competitor in a particular round, just click on the appropriate Clear button to the left of the row.

3.2.6 Changing the list order

Initially, competitors are shown in bounce order. To show them in rank order, just click the **Rank Order** checkbox on the scoring form. They will appear in descending order of their current placings. Note that if a 'Zero Final' rule is being applied, this can be a little confusing, as the rank order may differ from the total score order.

3.2.7 Incomplete or Non-Qualifying Routines

Some promotion rules require that only those competitors who complete both routines are eligible for promotion points. For this reason, you should ensure that if a routine is interrupted, you must record the actual number of completed moves for that round in the box provided. This is then taken into account when calculating the qualifying percentages. If the routine is completed, leave this box blank.

Total	Overall	Posn	Moves
21.30	21.30	8	
5.60	26.90	13	2
0.00	26.90	13	

This is also important to signify to TScore the situation where a competitor made a mistake on the first move and scored 0.0. You must set the 'Moves' to zero if this happens.

If the routine does not meet qualification criteria for some other reason (e.g. a voluntary routine has a lower tariff than permitted) then put an **X** in the Moves box. This will prevent the competitor being identified as a qualifier, even if they meet the score or finish position conditions.



3.2.8 The Final

 \bigcirc

If you check the **Final** box on the scoring form, then the top 8 competitors* from the first two rounds are listed in reverse order. You MUST uncheck the **Rank Order** box for this to take effect - otherwise you will just see all of the competitors in order of their scores.

* If you wish the final to include a different number of entrants, the competition organiser can change this on the **Preferences** form, from the 'Edit Competition' screen.

3.2.9 Withdrawing a Competitor

To Withdraw a competitor, simply click on the Withdraw button and confirm your action. To Reinstate or change competitor details, please see the section below entitled 'Editing the List of Competitors'.

3.2.10 Copy and paste a set of scores

So the inevitable has happened and you realise that you've just entered all the scores for someone against the wrong gymnast. You could just move to the correct competitor and enter the scores again, but TScore offers another option – the ability to copy and paste full result sets (either one round or all rounds). To copy, position the cursor in a score input box, hold down the <ctrl> key and press the 'S' key. (This is shortened to <ctrl>S etc. in the rest of this guide). To copy the scores for all rounds from the current competitor, use <ctrl>A.

When you do this, you will see the Paste buttons appear on the scoring screen:

Now you can change to a different competitor and simply click the buttons to paste those scores into the new competitor. You can also use <ctrl>W to paste one round or <ctrl>Q to paste all rounds. If you want to paste scores copied from one round into a different round, position your cursor in the target round, then press <ctrl>J to paste the saved Set scores, <ctrl>K for the Vol, <ctrl>L for the Final or <ctrl>M for the second Final (DMT/Tumbling).

	<< Competi	⋗ Katie Dickinson						
K	Set Vol X	Night Flyers						
Г	Move Scores		J1	J2	J3	J4	J5	Tariff
	Clear Set	Set	7.8	8.0	7.9	7.8	7.4	
	Clear Vol	Vol	7.4	7.7	7.5	7.5	7.4	1.9

	<< Competitor 2 >> Zoe Foote Set Vol X Grantham Move Scores	When you hover the mouse over each 'Paste' button, it shows you the values that it contains and the competitor from which they were
Pa	ste round 2 scores that were copied from Katie Dickinson: 7.4, 7.7, 7.5, 7.5, 7.4, 1.9	For copied.
	Clear Set Set 7.9 8.0 8.0 7.9 7.7 2 Clear Vol Vol 7.6 7.5 7.6 7.6 7.4 2.4 2	To hide the paste buttons, simply click the little (x) button next to them.



3.2.11 Moving scores for multiple entrants

It is not unusual for scores to be recorded against the wrong competitors for quite a while before the mistake becomes apparent. This is usually caused by either accidentally leaving a gap, or by confusion over withdrawn or reinstated entrants. For example, entrant 3 does not bounce but gets entrant 4's score recorded, then 4 gets 5's, 5 gets 6's etc. and the problem doesn't get noticed until you've nearly finished the round.

To correct such cases, you can use the 'Move Scores' option as follows.

Select the first competitor with the wrong score and click the 'Move Scores' button. On the next form that pops up, select 'Move Scores Down' and click Ok.

C Move Scores	—				
This option lets you move scores up or down the list of entrants. For example, if you have forgotten to withdraw a competitor and recorded	Ok				
someone else's scores against them (move all subsequent scores down), or if you missed out a competitor (move all subsequent scores up). Only use this option if you are certain that you know what you are doing!	Cancel				
Move scores DOWN - This person did not compete and has the next person's scores					
Move scores UP - I missed out this entrant and put their scores against the next person					

The scores for the marked competitor and all subsequent entrants will be moved down by one person. Any 'withdrawn' competitors will be skipped over.

Note that if the last competitor has a score recorded against them (that would be overwritten) you will be asked to confirm the move.

If a competitor's scores do get overwritten in this manner, they are automatically copied to the paste buffer in case you want to apply them to another competitor.

This option can also be used to move scores UP - if you accidentally skipped a competitor, or one was marked as withdrawn, but they bounced anyway.

For this situation, you mark the first competitor whose scores are to be overwritten - ensuring that they have been reinstated first if necessary.

If you are unsure about using this option, we recommend that you take a safe copy of the competition database first.

Note: The Move Scores is only shown if you are viewing a single class.

3.2.12 Time of Flight, Penalty and Bonus Scores

TScore also lets you record the Time of Flight for each routine. To enable this you must:

- 1. Check the "Time of Flight" box on the Preferences screen
- 2. Check the "Time of Flight" box for each class that you want to use it in the Class Editor.

When you do this, the Time of Flight entry box will be shown on the Score screen, and the totals will change to display 3 decimal places of precision.



Bonus Scores can be included in a similar fashion – set the global switch in Preferences and then the per-class switch for the ones that need it.

Note that bonus scores will count towards any qualifying execution scores when specifying per-round qualifications.

Penalty Scores are used to record overall penalties (i.e. Chair's deductions) for each routine. This is form things such as dress-code violations. Enter a positive number, which will be deducted from the overall score for that round.

3.3 Printing

To print results, checklists or certificates, simply choose the class you want to print and click the Print button at the top of the scoring form.

•		_
C Print Options		×
• 1 Number of copies	Preview the printed items	Print
Results		Cancel
Print Individual Class Results	Per Flight Results	Print Team Results
Checklists		
Print Chair's Checklist	Print Marshall's Checklist	
Print Manual Recording Sheet		
Certificates		
Print All Certificates		
Print Qualifiers' Certificates		
Range and Conditioning		
Print R & C Candidates	6 Number of Candidates	RC Qualifiers only

3.3.1 Printing the Results

To print results, from the scoring screen choose the class you want to print and click the Print button. You can then set the number of copies you want to print and decide whether to print the Individual, Team or both sets of results. You can also print results for a specific flight (useful for some USA meets)

The results may be previewed to the screen (this uses Excel - so you can use the Print option from there if you wish). If the Preview box is unchecked, the results will be sent directly to the default printer on your computer.

When printing Individual results, you can choose to print a list of Range and Conditioning candidates only – this is the top 6 finishers in the current class. If the current class is 'joined' from two or more other classes, the top 6 finishers in each of the constituent classes will be printed. If you want more of fewer that 6 candidates listed, just change the number on the form.

3.3.2 Printing Checklists

You can also print Manual Recording Sheets and checklists for the Marshalls and the Chair of the panel.

Choose the class, and then pick Print. Check the boxes next to the documents you want to print, set the number of copies and whether to preview the documents. Then click Print.

If the class has a final, you may choose to print the checklists you need for the final by checking the 'Final' box on the form. If you only want to print spaces for the preliminary rounds, check the 'Preliminary Rounds Only' box. Otherwise, classes having a final will print a second row of recording boxes for each entrant.

If you chose to preview the documents, they will appear in Excel, from where you can save them to file, or print them manually.



3.3.3 Printing Certificates

You can also print certificates for all competitors in the chosen class. This will take the Certificate Template that has been set up by your competition organiser, and substitute each entrant's name, club, score and position before printing each certificate.

If you only wish to print certificates for entrants achieving the qualifying scores that have been defined for this event, check the 'Print Qualifiers' Certificates' box.

You can also print certificates for competitors who have not recorded a score yet. This is especially useful if you want to produce a full set of 'participation' certificates before you actually run the event.

C Print Options		—
1 Number of copies	Preview the printed items	Print
Results		Cancel
Print Individual Class Results		
Print Team Results		
Checklists		
Print Chair's Checklist	Print Marshall's Checklist	
Print Manual Recording Sheet		
Certificates		
Print All Certificates	Print Certificates without scores	
Print Qualifiers' Certificates	Reprint previously printed certificates	

Note: If you want to print certificates for each club or school, you can use the Edit Clubs option.

 \bigcirc

Editing the List of Competitors

If a competitor's details have been entered incorrectly or you need to add a new competitor, you may click on the 'Edit' button at the top of the Scoring screen.

This will change the middle part of the screen to let you alter the details of an existing competitor, add a new competitor or completely remove a competitor from the competition database. There is also a rapid search facility to help you find the competitor you want to change.

NW East Midlands Clubs Mellish SC 1st October 2016							×
Select Panel and Class					Inc	lividu	al
Panel All • 10-14 Yrs Girls Grade E	• 5 Entrants P1 12.00 Teams	Email	Print	Score	Help	E	kit)
Find Competitors						tions	
	All Entrants Cort by St	et Ordon		_	- 6	Randor	nize
Name	All Entrants + Sort by: St	intorder	Ciur	, ,	- 2	Prote	ct
Competitor Details 915 0 Flig	tt 1 Set 24.3 Vol 27.5 Final	Tota	al 51.8	Posn	1	Recalcu	late
Name Megan Greasby Class 10-14 Yrs	Girls Grade E BG# Start 600	.00	Certificate	e Printed		Force S	ave
Club Night Flyers Night Flye	rs			Guest			
DoB Clear Add Save	Withdraw Remove Email support@tscore.co.u	k					
Name	Club	Start	Set	Vol	Total	Posn	w
Eloise Parrish	Extreme	100	18.20	25.50	43.70	5	
Megan Greasby	NUGHT ENGRE	600		27.50	E4 00		
Levi-Marie Kersley	Abbey HE	600	24.30	27.50	51.80	1	_
Lexi-Marie Kersley Aimee Mitchell	Abbey HF Extreme	600 642 665	24.30 18.50 22.00	27.50 25.70 24.80	51.80 44.20 46.80	1 4 3	=
Lexi-Marie Kersley Aimee Mitchell Mackenzie Hughes	Abbey HF Extreme Abbey HF	600 642 665 715	24.30 18.50 22.00 21.60	27.50 25.70 24.80 25.70	51.80 44.20 46.80 47.30	1 4 3 2	
Lexi-Marie Kersley Aimee Mitchell Mackenzie Hughes	Abbey HF Extreme Abbey HF	600 642 665 715	24.30 18.50 22.00 21.60	27.50 25.70 24.80 25.70	51.80 44.20 46.80 47.30	1 4 3 2	
Lexi-Marie Kersley Aimee Mitchell Mackenzie Hughes	Abbey HF Extreme Abbey HF	600 642 665 715	24.30 18.50 22.00 21.60	27.50 25.70 24.80 25.70	51.80 44.20 46.80 47.30	1 4 3 2	
Lexi-Marie Kersley Aimee Mitchell Mackenzie Hughes	Abbey HF Extreme Abbey HF	600 642 665 715	24.30 18.50 22.00 21.60	27.50 25.70 24.80 25.70	51.80 44.20 46.80 47.30	1 4 3 2	
Lexi-Marie Kersley Aimee Mitchell Mackenzie Hughes	Abbey HF Extreme Abbey HF	600 642 665 715	24.30 18.50 22.00 21.60	27.50 25.70 24.80 25.70	51.80 44.20 46.80 47.30	1 4 3 2	
Lexi-Marie Kersley Aimee Mitchell Mackenzie Hughes	Abbey HF Extreme Abbey HF	600 642 665 715	24.30 18.50 22.00 21.60	27.50 25.70 24.80 25.70	51.80 44.20 46.80 47.30	1 4 3 2	

As an example, suppose that a competitor has been entered into the wrong class.

Click the Edit button and click the competitor in the list to display their details. Then change the class using the pull-down list in the 'Competitor Details' part of the form and click **Save Changes**.

You will now be shown a summary of the changes you are about to make and asked to confirm this.

To add a new competitor, enter their name, club and class in the Competitor Details section and click Add. You will be shown a summary of the new entrant's details and asked to confirm that they are to be added to the competition.

Note that if the competitor already has scores recorded, some changes (altering the class for example) are not permitted. Some changes such as correcting club / team names once scoring has started, or changing the multi-region scoring options may also require you to click the **Recalculate** button in order to update positions and team scores. This is a safe operation anyway, so if in doubt, click it anyway!

In the Edit screen, you can use the built-in search facility to rapidly find a competitor. If you type the first few letters of their name or club, the list will be updated to show only those matching entrants. This is especially useful if you are unsure which class someone has entered - just set the class selector to 'All Classes' first.



P

3.3.4 Withdraw or Reinstate Competitors

If a competitor does not yet have a score recorded against them, the Withdraw button is shown.

Clicking this will explicitly mark them as having withdrawn from the competition. (This is important, as a withdrawn competitor must be treated differently to a competitor who has competed but scored zero when calculating qualifying positions)

You may subsequently reinstate the competitor by picking the Reinstate button.

A withdrawn competitor is indicated by a cross in the withdrawn ('W') column of the list and by a large 'W' in the scoring panel:



3.3.5 Removing a Competitor

It is possible to completely remove a competitor from the competition database. Pick the 'Remove' button from the Edit Competitor screen. You will be asked to confirm this operation.

ė	Confirm Competitor Removal
	The following competitor will be completely removed from the competition. Do NOT use this option to indicate a 'Withdrawal'. Please confirm this action by picking the button below.
	Name : Jono Rowland
	Club: NTGA
	Class: TRA Level 1 - Mens 13+
	Remove Do Not Remove

3.4 Saving and Exporting all of the Results

Saving the full set of results for publishing or export to other systems is described in the Competition Organiser's section below.

3.5 Connecting to a Different Competition

You may need to change competitions when first setting up, or if more than one competition database has been used for your event.

From either of the 'Main' or 'Edit Competition' screens, click the Change... button at the top right.

irrent Competition			
Server :	VIRG08	Database : nwemclub2016octresults	
	NW E	ast Midlands Clubs	Change Database
	Mellish SC	1st October 2016	

This will display the 'Connect' window:

Connect to Competition		×
Connection Details	Competitions	
Server : VIRGO8 List All	bopen2016 bulwell2014results	Connect
Logon : postgres	codajuly2016 easternchampionship2014c easternchampionship2014d easternchampionship2015aa easternchampionship2014	Refresh List
Password : postgres	easterndmtchampionship2014 easterndmtchampionship2014a easterndmtchampionship2014b eg2015feb	
Competition Details	eg2015febdmt eg2015febz	
Name : Brentwood Open 2016	eg2015mar emchamps2016b empdpnov15a	
Type of Competition : Custom	emregchamp2016a emschools2013a	
Venue : Brentwood School Sports Centre	emschools2014results emschools2015results	Delete
Date : 13th November 2016	greektest1	
No of Competitors : 281	lough_dht_nov2015_results lough_ndp_nov2015_results loughdmt2015results	Cancel

The 'Connection Details' show you which database server you are connected to (with a drop-down list of any other servers on your network), plus the current database connection username and password.

The 'Competitions' list shows you all of the competitions on the current server, while the 'Competition Details' box displays information about the competition currently highlighted in the list.

TScore remembers the server and competition that you were last attached to, and automatically connects to this when you next start the program.

To change to a different competition on the same server, simply click it in the list (the details will be shown) and then click the **Connect** button. You can also just double-click the list entry if you prefer.

Server :	VIRGO	•	List All
	VIRGO		
Logon :	AMILO		
	LIBRA	-	
assword ;	SCORPIO2		

To switch to a different database server, click the pulldown list of servers and select the one you want. If the server list only contains your PC, click the List All button to search the network for other computers.





TScore will normally only list those computers on which it can detect a database. You can tell it to list ALL computers on the network by changing the setting in the Preferences screen.

Only list database servers 🛛 🔽

The logon and password should be as you set them when you first installed the database. (By default, these are both 'postgres', but your administrator may have changed this.)

If you are having trouble seeing the other computers in your network, you can enter the IP address of the server into the 'Server' field. This may also be necessary if you are running on a single computer with no network enabled and no loopback DNS or HOSTS entry – try 127.0.0.1 in this case. To find the IP address of any PC, run a command prompt window (type 'cmd' in the Windows search menu) and then type 'ipconfig' and look for the IPv4 address. (This will usually begin with 192.168... or 10.0...)

If you cannot connect to any other computers on your network by name, you may need to enable NetBIOS over TCP/IP. To do this, go to the Windows Network and Sharing Center, Click on 'Change Adapter Settings (1), then double click the network adapter you are using (2) (usually the wireless adapter). Then click 'Properties'(3) and double-click the Internet Protocol Version 4 option (4). Now click Advanced (5) and the WINS tab. Ensure that the Enable NETBIOS over TCP/IP is selected (6). Apply by clicking OK all the way back up the windows!



3.6 Deleting a Competition

WARNING

DO NOT DO THIS UNLESS YOU REALLY WANT TO DESTROY A COMPETITION DATABASE!

DO NOT USE THIS OPTION DURING A COMPETITION

You can delete old or temporary databases using the Connection screen described in the previous section. Highlight the database that you want to delete by clicking on its name and then pick the **Delete** button. You will be asked to confirm the action.

TScore will automatically export a safe copy of the database before it is deleted. The filename of the safe copy will be shown when the operation has completed. If you've ignored all the warnings so far and still managed to accidently delete the wrong competition, you will have to use the 'Import Competition Database' option to recover the deleted database.

4 Creating a Competition

For competition organisers

TScore includes a sophisticated entry processing system that gives you a high degree of automation when setting up your competition. The normal sequence of operations is as follows:

- 1. Prepare the blank competition entry forms from one of the templates provided
- 2. Email the forms to all of the competing clubs for them to fill in
- 3. Save the returned forms in a single folder as they are emailed back to you
- 4. Use TScore to create a new competition database
- 5. Use the predefined class definitions or create your own
- 6. Set the 'Entries' folder to the one above and click the 'Process Entries' button
- 7. Combine any small classes with others to create joint classes (with one set of results)
- 8. Split large classes into flights (with one set of results)
- 9. Adjust the timings for each of the classes if necessary
- 10. Use the timetable editor to arrange the classes onto the panels in sessions
- 11. Set the panel configuration for each of the panels in use HD equipment present, dual beds.
- 12. Use the 'Team Editor' to check for and fix incorrect or missing teams
- 13. Randomise the start order for the competitors
- 14. Print the timetables for each panel and the list of trophies & medals & officials
- 15. Click the buttons to create the programme and checklists

Once the completed entry forms have arrived, it is entirely possible to set up a competition in a matter of minutes. The most time consuming aspect tends to be allocating the officials to their panels, as this invariably involves manual decisions.

Each of the above steps is explained in detail in the following sections.

4.1 **Competition Entry Forms**

Unless you are importing prepared lists of gymnasts for another system, you must use the supplied Excel Entry Forms for fully automated entry processing to work. Your first task is to prepare these and send them out to all the clubs taking part.

		9 - (° -	4 =	Cruisers Sept	2008.xls [Compat	ibility Mo	de] - Microsoft	Excel		-	1	×
		Home Inse	rt Page Layout	Formulas Data	Review View	Develo	per				- 10	- • x
		6 Arial	- 12 - A^	. = _ >	General		-		📑 🖓 🔤 Insert	- Σ-	A7	an l
L Day			6				L 00 Condition	- Eormat	Coll Pelet	e * 🛛 🐺 *	Zu l	ind St
- Pa:	, sie	B 1	<u>u</u> . (m. 1) <u></u>			• • .0	o ⇒.o Formattin	g * as Table * !	Styles - Forma	at • ⊘.•	Filter * S	elect *
Clipt	ooard	Fa	Font	Alignment	S Ni	imber	6	Styles	Cells		Editing	
		A7		Address								×
	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	I	JK	L	M
1		Help!						n	ev 6.1 24/7/2008			
2				East Midlan	ds Tramp	olini	ng					
3				Compet	ition Entry F	orm			2008			
4	Eve	nt	Regional Grade	es D to H	Venue							
5	Club)	Cheeky Cruisers	6	Date							=
6	Con	tact	Raymond Smith		BAGA Club N	lo.		98098				
_	Add	ress	35 Shrew Street		Telephone N	0.	C	115 899899)			
			Wilmsley		E-Mail Addre		smiff	w@home.c	ouk			
8	Doc	toode	NG8 400		Club Colours	33	51111	Vhite Blue	o.uk			
9	FUS	licoue	1100 400			,	,	vinte, Dide				
11	#	BG No	First Name	Last Name	Date of Birth	M/E	Grade	Age	Team			
12	1	911110	Priva	Roberts	01/01/2000	F	H	U9				
12	2	911121	Emily	Ralfs	01/01/2000	F	Н	U9				
1/	-1	Judge:	Jo Gibbons		Level:		Club	AI	Dav			
15		ouugo.			20101		0.00		Duy			
16	3	911123	Stacey	Gibbons	01/01/1995	F	Н	U15				
17	4	911185	Milo	Roberts	01/01/1996	М	Н	U13				
18	5	911146	Naomi	Griffiths	01/01/1993	F	G	15+				
19	6	911210	Mia	Dunn	01/01/1994	F	G	U15				
20	7	911110	Dale	McCullough	01/01/1992	Μ	G	15+				
21		Official:	Jane Dunn		Job:	Ma	arshall C	Мо	rning			
22	2r	nd Official:	Dawn McCullo	ugh	Job:	Ма	arshall C	Afte	rnoon			
23	8	911231	Lucy	Catling	01/01/1998	F	G	U11				
24	9	911110	Izzie	Arthur	01/01/1997	F	G	013				
25	10	914310	Jo - Jo	Charley	01/01/1997	F	F	013				
26	11	914410	John	Arthura	01/01/1996		F	013				
27	12	914510	Rebecca	Arunurs	01/01/1994	-		15+				
20	15	Judge	Val Bahnam	MullCaster		Г	Club	Mo	rning			
30	2	nd Judge:	Jo Bettyes		Level:		GIUD	Afte	rnoon			
31	14	911490	Navdn	Bahnam	01/01/1994	М	E	U15				
32	15	915010	Leanne	Lacey	01/01/1994	F	E	U15				
33	16	915110	Kimberley	Tucker	01/01/1994	F	E	U15				
14 4	• •	Entries	ayment 🖉 Instructio	ns 🖌 Clubs 🖌 Lis 🛛 🖌								
Read	dy 🚦								1009	6 🕞 🚽		-+ .:

IMPORTANT!

You must set the YEAR on the front worksheet for the age group calculations to be correct. The sheets assume that age groups are defined by the calendar year of the date of birth. If you need to use the academic year instead, please use the 'Schools Competition' template entry form instead.



There are a few protected fields that contain hidden data and formulae on the sheet, so avoid too much rearranging. For example, B3 contains the Discipline identifier for the event; IND, SYN, DMT or TUM. Any other value we be treated as IND.

Note that Excel **must** be used to edit this form – 'Open Office' and 'Numbers' get it wrong!



4.1.1 Multi-Discipline Forms

Some alternative layouts for forms are also supported. If you are running a multi-discipline event, you can add a duplicate of the Entries worksheet for each discipline. In this case you MUST name the worksheets as follows: "Entries", "Entries2", "Entries TRA", "Entries SYN", "Entries DMT", "Entries TUM". In each case, ensure that cell B3 contains the correct discipline identifier.

Permitted age groups for each Grade or Level are defined on the (hidden) 'Lists' worksheet. This is reasonably self-explanatory.

A further option is presented as an example for the USAG entry forms, where each individual may enter different disciplines at different levels. There might even be different age groups per discipline. An example is shown below:

X	H) · (2 ·	🖨 💽 📼	Vargas Entr	y Form 2014.xl	sx - Mio	crosoft Exce	el					- • ×
	File	Home	e Insert Page Layou	it Formulas Data Rev	view View							~ ♡ (] — 🗗 Σ
		C5	→	cademy									
	Α	В	С	D	E	F	G	Н	1	J	K	L	M N
1		Help!										rev 14.3	2 Mar 17th 2014
2				California T	rampolir	ne ar	d Tum	nbling					
3	15	USATT		C	ompetition	Entry	Form						2014
4	Eve	ent			Venue								
5	Tea	m	Vargas Academy		- ate								
6	Col	ntact	Vern		USAG Team	#							
7	Add	dress			Telephone N	lo.							
					E-Mail Addre	ess	warnas55@	ahoo.com					
8							margaooole	, another and					
9	Zip	Code		1	Team Colou	rs							
10							TRAMF	POLINE	DI	ИТ	TUME	BLING	
11	#	USAG #	First Name	Last Name	Birth Year	M/F	Level	Age	Level	Age	Level	Age	Payment
12	1	121212	Asha	Smith	1999	F	8	15-0	8	15-0	7	15-0	
13	2	121213	Tal	Jones	2004	M	6	9-10	6	9-10	6	9-10	
14	3	121214	Yuval	White	2003	М	8	11-12	8	11-12	8	11-12	
15	4	121215	Sofia	Green	2006	F	5	7-8	5	7-8	4	7-8	
16	5	121216	Jared	Black	2003	М	7	11-12	7	11-12	6	11-12	
17	6	121217	Tyler May	Brown	2004	F	6	9-10	6	9-10	5	9-10	
18	7	121218	Hannah	Henderson	2002	F	7	11-12	7	11-12	7	11-12	
19	8	121219	Richard	Geller	2002	M	6	11-12	7	11-12	6	11-12	
20	9	121220	Max	Cooper	1996	M	8	15-0	8	15-0	8	15-0	
21	10	121221	Hana	VVOIIOWITZ	2007	F	5	7-8	5	7-8	5	7-8	
22	11	121222	Induate	Stophoneon	2005	F	0	9-10	0	9-10	0	9-10	
23	12	121223	Tiki	Johnston	2003	Г	(11-12	0	10.11	0	10.11	
24	14	121224	Naiva	Rush	2004		6	0.10	6	0.10	6	0.10	
25	15	121220	Grace	Clinton	2005	E	5	7-8	5	7-8	3	7.8	
20	16	121220	Grace	Gintoff	2000	F	3	7-0	3	7-0	*	1-0	
21	17												
H	< > >	Entries / 1	Instructions / Teams / Lists			_					0		
Re	eady									100	0% (_)	-0	+ ,

Overall, there is a lot of flexibility in the form definition, provided you base it on one of the provided templates and retain the column layouts of the critical fields (#, name, age group, level, gender).

Marking 'Guest' entrants on forms

You can indicate that an entrant is a guest from the entry form simply by putting a space and asterisk after their surname (e.g. "Smith *"). Alternatively, you can use column "J" on the entry form. Put an asterisk in the row above the labels (usually row 10) to turn this feature on. Then, any entrant with a non-blank entry in column J will be marked as a 'Guest'.



4.1.2 Setting Club Details

The entry form has a worksheet on which you can list all of the clubs, so that their details can be filled in simply by picking from a list.

G		•	Cru	uisers Sept 2008.xls	[Compati	bility Mode] - Mi	crosoft Excel				-	- x
	Home Insert	Page Layout Form	ulas Data Re	eview View	Developer						 	= x
ſ	Tahoma	· 10 · A ▲	= = >	Wrap Text	General				× 🛅	Σ - Α	7 🕅	
Pa	aste 🦼 🖪 🛛 🖳 🗸	• • • • • • •		Merge & Center	- 9-0	% , • .0 .00	Conditional Format Cell I	Insert Del	ete Format	So So	rt & Find &	L
Clip	board 🕞 🛛 🖡	Font 🕞	Alignm	ent	G N	umber 😡	Styles	Ce	lls	E	diting	
	A6 🔫 (fx f										×
	А	В	С	D	E	F	G		Н		1	
1	Club	Address	Post Code	Contact	BAGA	Tel	Email		Colours			
2												
	Bouncy Bouncers	40 Gilbert St,	PE4 9QR	Andy Peters	99880	01733 541123	bouncy@btopenworld.com		Navy			
3		Werlingford, Peterborough										=
	Cheeky Cruisers	35 Shrew Street	NG8 4QQ	Raymond Smith	98098	0115 899899	smiffy@home.co.uk		White, Blue			
4		Wilmsley										
	Feverish Fliers	9 Munster Street	LE5 0ZZ	Sarah Fish		07701 888999	sarah.fish@goole.com					
5		Leicester										
6												
7												\vdash
8												\vdash
10							7					<u> </u>
H ·	Entries / Paym	ent 🖉 Instructions 📜 🤇	Clubs 🖉 Lists 🧹 🖏				IIII					
Rea	ady 🛅								IШ 100% (-			÷:

5

The spread sheet is locked down to prevent accidentally changing fields that shouldn't be edited by the clubs. As an organiser though, you need access to some of these protected fields so that you can set the venue, date etc. You may also wish to amend the instructions on some of the supporting worksheets. Should this be the case, you will need to unlock each sheet. Once you have made your changes you should re-lock each worksheet. We strongly recommend setting a password for this; otherwise people will fiddle with things and mess up the formulae! The password for the sample entry forms is 'barani'.

When the completed entry forms are returned to you, save them all to a folder on your PC (with no other Excel files in it!). Note that if you try to use 'Open Office' or other programs to edit the entry forms, they will frequently fail to operate correctly. You should always use Microsoft Excel to edit these files.

It is also possible to use the program without the entry forms - you can enter the competitor details directly if you prefer, or you can read in a list of competitors as a comma separated file (.csv) – see the section 'Importing a simple list of entrants' below.

Warning: It is best to **close any Excel documents before starting TScore**. There is a risk that otherwise, unsaved files may be lost when TScore exits.



4.2 How to set up a competition

Pick 'Start a New Competition' and fill in the name, venue, date and a unique database name.

Choose the events you want to include in your competition from the checkboxes shown.

This will create the competition database for you. If you want to change it later, use 'Change Competition Details' on the 'Edit Competition' screen. (Note that you cannot alter the events after creation though.)

When setting the min / max members in a team, the minimum is also the number of scores counted for each team, the maximum will be the biggest number of entrants allowed in a team.

👛 Competition Details	
Discipline : Trampoline / Tumbling	Artistic C
Type : Argentina 2017	•
Argentina National	Trampoline and 2017
Events : Trampoline 🔽 Synchro 🔽	
De	talls
Name : <competition name=""></competition>	
Venue : <competition venue=""></competition>	Date : <competition date=""></competition>
Save as : <pre><database name=""></database></pre>	Time : 09.00 -
Teams	Rules
Team top scores by total	Scoring Help Tie-Break Help
Maximum competitors in team 🚺 🛨	Tie-breaks : EIG 2013
Minimum competitors in team	Missed scores per bed in synchro
Printed Programme	Results
Order : Gender, Age, Grade	Guest Label : Guest
	Include guests in rankings
	Separate Results per Region 💌
ОК	Cancel

'Guest' entrants are usually non-competing entrants; they will be given placings above 1000 to separate them from the actual competitors. However, it is also possible to allow guests' scores to be counted in team results. This is especially useful in Schools competitions, where Individuals and Teams are separated. See the 'Preferences' for how to configure this, but meanwhile, you may want to change the 'Guest Label' to be 'Team'. You can also use the Guest label for other purposes – if you want to include people marked as guests in

The next steps you need to perform are:-

- 1. Process the competition entry forms
- 2. Make any changes needed to the classes such as merging small ones
- 3. Check and correct the teams for each class

the actual results, check the 'Include Guests in Rankings' box.

- 4. Set up the competition timetable
- 5. Set the Start Order for the whole competition
- 6. Create the Programme and Officials' Checklists for the competition
- 7. Go and have a well-deserved beer

These steps are described in more detail below. (Apart from that last one – you're probably an expert already)



4.3 **Processing entry forms**

Start TScore, make sure the right competition database is connected and then click 'Edit This Competition'.

Current Competition					
Server: VIRG08		Dat	abase : zzzdemo3		
	Ea	ast Midlands Qualifi	ər		Change Database
Nottingham			15th August 20	17	
Competition Entry Forms					
::\VB Projects\TScore10\Testing\Formal\UK-NDP-	2018			•	Change
ist of entry forms - double click to view		Messages		Competition	NDP Trampoline
Sero Knetics Alsx (9) Bassellaw Alsx (14) Defaasks (10) Defaasks (10) Elevate Alsx (6) Hinchley Alsx (8)		13 Ti	Total of 132 comp 0 TRA, 0 SYN, 2 DMT, 0 TUM All entrants have been The list of trophies needed h he competitor list sorted by clas	etitors from 8 clubs , 0 RHY, 0 MAG, 0 wAG, 0 AD loaded into zzzdemo3 as been written to Timetable s has been written to Program	CR Ne
HHTA xitx (16) ITGA xitx (59)	1:	New Competition	Change Details	Edit Database	Help
	2:	Process Entry Forms	Show Trophies	Edit Classes	
	3 :	Edit Timetable	Show Timetable	Edit Clubs	5
	4:	Make Programme	Show Programme	Requalification	
	5 :	Make Checklists	Show Checklists	Show Changes	Preferences
		Import / Export	Competition Status	Score	Exit

Select the folder containing the entry forms and click 'Process Entries' to read the files. This will load the entries directly into the competition database. If there are already entries in the database, you will be asked whether you want to replace them.

If you do choose to replace them, then ALL existing entries will be removed from the competition This is so you can simply keep database. reprocessing the entry forms until you are happy with them.

Once processed, the list will show you how many entries were found in each file. Double-click an entry form file in the list to view and edit it.

If you need to reprocess the forms, TScore will detect that there are already entries in the database and ask you how to proceed.

💪 TScore		x
	Competition database already has entries.	
	You may either:	
	Replace them all with the ones you have just read	
	Append new competitors and update existing ones	
	Or Undate existing ones only	
	opuate existing ones only	
Replace	Append Update Cancel	

If you select Replace, all existing records will be deleted and the full list of entrants will be recreated from the entry forms.

If you choose to Update, TScore will perform an intelligent append / update of existing entrants, according to the following rules:

- 1. Does the BG/USAG Number match?
- or 2. Does the competitor's full name and DoB match?

If a matching record is found that has different values for some fields, you will be prompted to decide whether to update the record for that competitor. If no match is found, the entry is ignored.

If you choose to Append, then TScore will first attempt an update, but if no matching record is found, a new entrant will be created.



TScore User Guide

The following competite	or details will be changed.
Please confirm this action	by picking the button below.
Was	Will Be
Name : Callum McTavish	Callum McTavish
BG No: 231333	231333
Club : Chumford	Chumford
Full Club : Chumford	Chumford
State	
Class : DMT FIG Dev - Men 17+	DMT Level 4 - Men 13+
Start : 601.86	990.6112
eMail: contact@club.001	freddy@club.001
ate of Birth : 2002	2002
Certificate : Not Printed	Not Printed
Change	Do Not Change

Check that the updated details are correct and then click Change or Do Not Change as appropriate.

This will be repeated for every competitor that appears to match but whose details have changed.

If you are confident that you know all of the changes, you can click **Apply to All** before making your choice, in which case no further prompts will appear.

When you have finished this stage, an initial programme and list of required trophies is automatically produced.

4.4 Club Names

Some parts of the screen display and checklists have limited space in which to print the club names. Some clubs and many schools have very long names that might be truncated inappropriately. For this reason, TScore lets you define your own 'Short Names' for clubs / teams that are used in such places, whilst permitting the full names on final documents such as the printed Certificates.

To set up your own names, simply edit the ClubNames.txt file in the TScore Templates folder:

e.g.	
Grimsby Tigers	> Grimsby
Market Harborough	> Mkt Harborough
Mickleover Gymnastics	> Mickleover
Kesteven & Grantham Girls School	> KGGS
All Saints RC School	> All Saints
Branston Community College	> Branston CC
Central Technology College	> Central Tech
Kirk Hallam Community Technology College	> Kirk Hallam Tech
Djanogly City Academy	> Djanogly
St. George's Technical College	> St. George's Tech

A maximum of around 15 characters is generally sensible for the short name.



The TScore Templates folder location varies by operating system. Check the 'Preferences' option to see what your system is currently using. Note that on Windows 7, 8 and 10 it can be confusing as the **'C:\Users\Public\Documents\TScore\'** folder appears as **'C:\Users\Public\Public Documents\TScore\'** in the Windows explorer.



4.5 Editing the Timetable:

4.5.1 Basic Timetabling

Click 'Edit Timetable' to create, edit and save the timetable.

💪 Tin	netable Editor								
Class Details				Instructions	Instructions				
Name TRA Band 7 - Womens Over 19 Panel 4 Warmup 15.20 Number of Entrants 3 Dutation 15 Compete 15.44 Minutes per entrant 5 Actual mins per entrant 5 Finish 16.11			This duction is the set of the start line. The set of the start line and Panel using the fields on the left. To move a class pick not a session, it will be added to that session. If you dop it onto a session, it will be added to that session. When you have finished, click 's you' or Cancel.						
	Panel 1	Panel 2	Par	iel 3	Panel 4	Panel 5	· ·	•	
09.00	TPD R1C1 Girls	_ TRA Band 1 WU11	-			_DMT Band 3 W15+	09.00	-	
	TPD RICT Boys	TRA Band 1 WU9				DMT Band 3 WU15	-		
	TRA Band 1 MU9	-				DMT Band 4 WU15		Save	
10.00	TRA Band 2 W013	TRA Band 1 WU13	1			DMT Band 2 W15+	10.00	Canad	
	-	TDA Dane 4 Million				DMT Band 2 WU15		Cancel	
	-								
11.00		TRA Band 2 WU11				DMT Band 4 M15+	11.00		
	TDA Band 2 W49+					DMT Band 2 MU15			
	TRA Band 2 WU19					DMT Band 3 MU15		Conflicts	
12.00	-					DMT Band 1 W15+	12.00		
	TRA Band 2 MU13	TRA Band 2 WU15							
						DMT Band 1 WII15			
	TRA Band 2 MU15	TRA Band 2 MU11				Divit Dand 1 World			
13.00							13.00		
	TRA Band 2 MU17	TRA Band 2 WU9				DMT Band 1 M15+		Drag classes to the	
	TRA Band 3 MU11	4	J			DMT Band 1 MU15		buttons below to	
14.00	TRA Band 3 MU13	TRA Band 3 WII17					14.00	change day	
	TRA Band 3 MU15								
	TRA Band 3 WU11	TRA Band 3 WU13						Day 1	
15.00	-				TRA Band 6 WU19		15.00		
	TRA Band 4 WU13	TRA Band 3 WU15	-TRA Band 5 M19	+	TRA Band 7 W19+			Day 2	
	TRA Band 4 WU15		TRA Band 5 N	1013	TRA Band 4 MU13			Duy 2	
16.00			TRA Band 5 N	1U15	TRA Band 4 MU15		16.00		
		TRA Band 4 W19+	TRA Rand & Will						
		-	TRA Band 6 M	1017 -				Day 3	
17.00			TRA Band 6 MU	19			17.00		
18.00							18.00		

The graphical timetable editor lets you see when each class is run and on which panel. Up to 8 panels can be run on up to 3 days. Just grow the window to show more.

You can drag and drop each class to fit, or enter start times and panels directly.

If you drop one class on top of another, they will be combined into the same session (i.e. they will be given the same bounce start time) but their results will be kept separate. Classes having the same start time on a given panel are shown in the same colour. (e.g. the 15+ and U15 Boys Grade D on Panel 1 at 14.00 above)

To move a set of combined classes, hold the **shift key** down while you click and drag a class. To move all of the classes on a panel by the same amount, **click on the panel header label** (the dark blue 'Panel 1' etc.) and then enter the number of minutes you wish to move by and click **Ok** in the pop-up form.

When you **Save** the timetable, the details are saved to the database and a printable copy is created in the 'Timetable' Excel file. Simply click on the **Show Timetable** button to see this file.

The timetable file includes an overall timetable and individual timetables that you can print for each panel. You may edit the timetable file in Excel to adjust the presentation as you wish.

4.5.2 Two 'Warmup' Trampolines

You may choose to run one or more panels with two trampolines, so that warmups can be run faster. To do this, click on the header of the panel concerned and select the 'Two Warmup Beds option.

The proportion of warmup time saved can be set in the Preferences screen. By default, warmups are reduced to 67% of the single bed time.

💪 Panel Details	— ×
Information for Panel	
Move all start times 🗖	ок
Two Warmup beds 🔽 Has Electronic HD Equipment 🗖	Cancel

4.5.3 Identify Timetable Conflicts

If you run a multi-discipline event, it is possible you may have hidden timetable conflicts for some entrants. To see these, just click the 'conflicts' button. You will be advised that the timetable will be saved in order to calculate the conflicts.

If you proceed, a list of conflicts is then shown. To copy the list, just click ctrl-C in the box. The text turns green for a couple of seconds to confirm the copy. You can then paste it into whatever text viewer you want (notepad, word etc) to refer to as you adjust the flights and times to avoid the problems.



4.5.4 Multi-Day Events

If you run a competition over more than one day, you can schedule each day independently. Simply drag each class over to the appropriate 'Day' button to move it. It will appear on that day's schedule.

Click each button to show classes running on that day.

The buttons are colour coded: Green for the currently displayed day; Orange for other days with scheduled classes; Grey for days with no scheduled classes.





4.6 Reviewing the Entrants

Once all of your competitors are entered, you should click on **Edit Database** so you can check the entrants. The Competitor List screen is shown. From here, you can view all of the entrants directly from the competition database. Click **Exit** to return to the 'Edit this Competition' screen

💪 Demonstration Event My Sports Hall 1st February 2017 — 🗆								
Select Panel and Class	38 Entrants	Panel 2 9.00		Ti	ampolin	е		
Event Trampoline • Panel	All 🔹 All Classes	Teams Email Print Score Help Exit						
Find Competitors					Actions			
Name	Club	All Entrants Sort	by: Start Order 🗖 🛛 Cli	ub 🗖	Randomize			
Competitor Details 3 0	Flight 1 Set	Vol Final	Total	Posn	Prote	ect		
Name Abbie Cocker	Class TRA Level 4 - Women 11-12	• BG# 888116 Star	t 100 Certifica	te Printed 🧧	Force S	Save		
Club Bouncy Bouncers	Bouncy Bouncers			Guest 🗖				
DoB 01/01/2005 Clear Ad	d Save Withdraw Rem	nove Email bouncy@btoper	nworld.com					
Name	Class	Club	Panel Start Set	Total Posn	Grade	Wit!		
Abbie Contras					NDD4			
Abbie Cocker	NDP 4 W11-12	Bouncy Bouncers	2		NDP4			
Ance Marshall	NDP 3 W13+	Bouncy Bouncers	2		NDP3			
Beth Thommasson	NDP 4 W13+	Bouncy Bouncers	2		NDP3			
Bethany Punchan	CLB 2 W13+	Bouncy Bouncers	2		CLB2	$\left - \right $		
Caitlin Tansley	CLB 2 W13+	Bouncy Bouncers	2		CLB2			
Charlotte Summerly	NDP 1 W13+	Bouncy Bouncers	3		NDP1			
Dale McCullough	NDP 1 M13+	Cheeky Cruisers	3		NDP1			
Emily Ralfs	CLB 1 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	2		CLB1			
Harley Bowskill	NDP 6 W13-14	Bouncy Bouncers	1		NDP6			
Holly Marshall	NDP 2 W13+	Bouncy Bouncers	3		NDP2			
Isobel Johnson	NDP 3 W9-10	Bouncy Bouncers	2		NDP3			
Isobelle Hammond	NDP 2 W13+	Bouncy Bouncers	3		NDP2			
Izzie Arthur	NDP 2 W9-10	Cheeky Cruisers	3		NDP2			
Jo - Jo Charley	NDP 2 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	3		NDP2			
John Wilson	NDP 2 M11-12	Cheeky Cruisers	1		NDP2			
Katie O'brien	NDP 4 W11-12	Bouncy Bouncers	2		NDP4			
Kellie Joyce	NDP 6 W13-14	Bouncy Bouncers	1		NDP6			
Kimberley Tucker	NDP 5 W13-14	Cheeky Cruisers	1		NDP5			
Lauren Bettyes	NDP 6 W17+	Cheeky Cruisers	1		NDP6			
Leanne Lacey	NDP 5 W15+	Cheeky Cruisers	1	<u> </u>	NDP5			
Lucy Catling	NDP 2 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	3	<u> </u>	NDP2			
Megan Arthurs	NDP 3 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	2	<u> </u>	NDP3			
Mia Dunn	NDP 1 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	3	<u> </u>	NDP1	$\left \right $		
Milo Roberts	NDP 1 M11-12	Cheeky Cruisers	3	<u> </u>	NDP1	\vdash		
Mr Callachan	NDP 6 M15-16	Bouncy Bouncers	1		NDP6			

4.7 Setting the Start Order

At **Trampoline and DMT** events, we usually randomize the bounce order and do not typically assign a recognized 'Competitor number' to each entrant. To set the Random Start Order, just click on the **Randomize** button on the Edit Competitors screen. You should only do this BEFORE you have produced your final programme with bounce orders in!

💪 Randomise Start Order	×				
You are about to recalculate the start order for ALL gymnasts in this competition.					
This process cannot be reversed!					
Do not continue if you have already produced the programmes or other lists giving the running order					
Recalculate	Do Not Recalculate				

Note that in order for this to work in this manner, it is important that you check the Preferences setting for 'Show fixed start numbers'. This flag changes the behaviour of the competitor numbering system.

At **Artistic Gymnastics** events for example, each gymnast is usually assigned a number according to the age of the gymnast within their team. i.e. each team's members are assigned sequential numbers, with the lowest number for the youngest member.

To achieve this, you need to ensure that the 'Show fixed start numbers' box is CHECKED:

Show fixed start numbers 🔽

Then go to Edit Competition->Edit Database, where you will see that the Randomize button is now labelled as 'Set Start'. Click this to show the Start Order dialog:

💪 Set Start Order	X				
You are about to reset the competitor numbers for ALL gymnasts in this competition.					
This process cannot be reversed!					
Do not continue if you have already produced the programmes or other lists giving the running order					
By age within team					
C Random within class					
Recalculate Do Not Reca	alculate				

You now have a choice of behaviour. Select 'By age within team' and then 'Recalculate' to continue.



TScore User Guide

At **Tumbling** events however, each gymnast is usually assigned a sequential number for the class within which they are competing. The ordering within each class is randomized. TScore also lets you leave a gap in the sequence between each class, should you want to allow for late entrants.

To achieve this, you need to ensure that the 'Show fixed start numbers' box is CHECKED as above.

Then go to Edit Competition->Edit Database, and click the 'Set Start' button:

💪 Set Start Order					
You are about to reset the competitor numbers for ALL gymnasts in this competition.					
This process cannot be reversed!					
Do not continue if you have already produced the programmes or other lists giving the running order					
O By age within team	Start number: 1				
Random within class	Gap between classes: 0				
Recalculate	Do Not Recalculate				

From here, you can set the number for the first gymnast (in case you want to start at 101 for example) and you can also add a gap between each class to allow for late entrants. (If you subsequently add a late entrant, just set their number manually on the Edit Competitor form).

Note that the classes themselves are ordered according to their scheduled start time, so it is best to put the classes in the desired order using the Timetable Editor before assigning the start numbers.

It is worth noting that when you check the 'Show fixed start numbers' preferences box, checklists and the programme will be generated with the assigned gymnast competitor number shown. If not, then the order within the class is used.

4.8 Emailing entrants and clubs

TScore provides direct emailing capabilities so that you can send messages, start lists (aka 'rosters') and results to all of the clubs and entrants in your event.

Go to the Edit Database screen and click the Email button to use this feature.

💪 Send eMails to Entrants							
 Simple Message Full List of Entrants Individual List of Entrants 	Test run only Preview Messages Provide your own list of recipients Include Results	Send Emails Close					
"To" address for BCC recipients undisclosed.recipients@myownemail.org Subject %COMP% at %VENUE% on %DATE%							
Header Information for the %COMP% at %VENUE% on %DATE% Attach File Choose File							
Created 7 emails successfully Hi, Here is your athlete roster for the above event. Please check the entries carefully and let us know if you spot any errors or omissions. You should aim to arrive at least 45 minutes before your start time. Full details are available on our website: Meet Information See you all there. Chris							
<	<						

Set the subject and header for your email – you can use the tags %COMP%, %VENUE% and %DATE% to pick up the competition name, venue and date from the current event.

You can also select an attachment for the email – this is useful to send out the exported results. Click **Choose File** to pick the file you want to attach.

For privacy, it is best to send bulk emails using 'bcc'.

To do this, set the 'To' address to one of your choice – usually one of your own.

Put the text you want for the body of the message in the message box – this accepts HTML if you want to include links to your website for example.

If you select **Simple Message** then every email address in your competition database will get the same message and attachment.

If you select **Full list of entrants** then every email will include a table of the entrants that you are currently showing on the Edit Database screen. (i.e any search, discipline or class filters you have set will be applied).

If you select Individual list of entrants then separate emails will be sent out to each club / email address list, including only the details for their club. Search filters are also applied. The BCC undisclosed recipients field is not needed for this option.

The check boxes to the right determine whether the emails are actually sent, and what additional information to include in them.

Checking **Preview Messages** will generate all of the emails in Outlook, but not actually send them. They will appear on screen for you to check and then send or delete as you wish. When previewing, you can also choose to provide your own list of recipients for the emails. This stops TScore from filling in the email recipients automatically.

If you check Include results, then scores and placings will be included in the generated list of athletes.

If you check **Include Date of Birth**, then the date or year of birth or the school year will be included in the generated list of athletes, according to the type of competition being run and the entry form data available.



TScore User Guide

Checking Test run only will run through the process, telling you how many emails would be sent and whether there are any athletes without an identifiable email address. This is especially useful when sending individual lists of entrants, so you can check that nobody will be missed out before actually sending all of the emails.



When you are ready, click Send emails to proceed. Your settings and content are remembered as long as TScore is running.

Remember that you must have Outlook installed and enabled for programmatic access on your computer for this feature to work.

You can configure the email account name to send emails from in the Preferences screen.

5 Changing competitor details

When you are preparing the competition, it is generally best to make any changes to the original entry files and re-process them.

Once the start order has been set and published, you can use the 'LateEntries' Excel file to add extra competitors to the database and checklists, however, it may be easier to use the Add option in Edit Database.

You may also continue to update the original entry forms since TScore lets you merge any additional or modified entrants. Do not use this method though once you have made manual changes to the entrants, as those changes will be lost. Always take a safe copy of the database just in case.

You can take a safe copy of the competition database whenever you like by going to the main screen, clicking **Import/Export** and selecting 'Copy Competition Database'. You can recover it later using 'Import Competition Database' from the same location.

If you need to change the details of existing competitors, you can use the Edit Database option. From this screen, you can make changes to the competitors very quickly

To find a competitor, just start typing their name or club in the 'Find' panel. You can also or pick their class in the 'Select Class' panel. You will notice that if you set a search filter, the 'Show All Entrants' button appears. This gives you a quick 'reset search' option and is visible from the Scoring form too.

💪 Demonstration Event My Sports Hall 1st February 2017 🛛 📃 🗌							
Select Panel and Class	Panel 3 10.20			Tra	ampolin	ie	
Event Trampoline • Pane	ei All 🖌 All Classes	•	· Teams Em	ail Print Sc	ore 🛛 F	lelp	Exit
Find Competitors Ac						Actions	
Show All Entrants Name	Club ch	All Entrants 🔹	Sort by: Start Ore	ier 🗖 Club 🗖		Randomize	
Compatible Datally		Not Find		T-4-1 D-		Prot	ect 🔵
Competitor Details 34	U Flight 1 Set	Voi Finai		Total Po:	sn	Recalc	ulato
Name Dale McCullough	Class TRA Level 1 - Men 13+	• BG# 917110	Start 100	Certificate Print	ed 🗖	Force	Save
Club Cheeky Cruisers	Cheeky Cruisers			Gu	est 🗖	Torce	Jave
DoB 01/01/2002 Clear	Add Save Withdraw	Remove Email Smiffy@	home.co.uk				
Name	Class	Club	Panel Start Set	Vol Total	Posn	Grade	Wit
Dale McCullough	NDP 1 M13+	Cheeky Cruisers	3			NDP1	
Emily Ralfs	CLB 1 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	2			CLB1	
Izzie Arthur	NDP 2 W9-10	Cheeky Cruisers	3			NDP2	
Jo - Jo Charley	NDP 2 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	3			NDP2	
John Wilson	NDP 2 M11-12	Cheeky Cruisers	1			NDP2	
Kimberley Tucker	NDP 5 W13-14	Cheeky Cruisers	1			NDP5	
Lauren Bettyes	NDP 6 W17+	Cheeky Cruisers	1			NDP6	
Leanne Lacey	NDP 5 W15+	Cheeky Cruisers	1			NDP5	
Lucy Catling	NDP 2 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	3			NDP2	
Megan Arthurs	NDP 3 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	2			NDP3	
Mia Dunn	NDP 1 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	3			NDP1	
Milo Roberts	NDP 1 M11-12	Cheeky Cruisers	3			NDP1	
Naomi Griffiths	NDP 1 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	3		_	NDP1	
Naydn Bahnam	NDP 5 M15+	Cheeky Cruisers	1			NDP5	
Priya Roberts	CLB 1 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	2			CLB1	
Rebecca Muncaster	NDP 3 W13+	Cheeky Cruisers	2			NDP3	
Ross Weatherburn	NDP 6 M15-16	Cheeky Cruisers	1			NDP6	
Stacey Gibbons NDP 1 W11-12 Ch		Cheeky Cruisers	3			NDP1	

Then click on the entrant in the list to view their current details.
To change their name, club or class, just alter the value in the 'Competitor Details' panel and click **Change**. You will be asked to confirm the change.

💪 Competitor Change Confirmation	×
The following competitor de Please confirm this action by	etails will be changed. picking the button below.
Was	Will Be
Name : Dale McCullough	Dale MacCullough
BG No: 917110	917110
Club : Cheeky Cruisers	Cheeky Cruisers
Full Club : Cheeky Cruisers	Cheeky Cruisers
Region	
Class : TRA Level 1 - Men 13+	TRA Level 1 - Men 13+
Start: 100	100
eMail: smiffy@home.co.uk	smiffy@home.co.uk
Date of Birth : 01/01/2002	01/03/2002
Certificate : Not Printed	Not Printed
Change	Do Not Change

Note that if a competitor changes classes after the bounce order has been set, a start value will be assigned so that they bounce last. (This can be changed using the **Preferences** option).

To withdraw a competitor, click on Withdraw and to reinstate a previously withdrawn competitor, click **Reinstate**. You will be asked to confirm the change in each case. Withdrawn competitors have an explicit indicator so that they can be distinguished from an actual competitor who scores zero.

It is not possible to change a competitor's class once they have a score recorded against them. They can be withdrawn though, in which case their existing scores are preserved. If you do need to changes classes, simply delete the entrant's scores first.

To add a new competitor, enter their Name, Club and Class in the Competitor Details panel and click Add.

To remove a competitor, highlight their name in the list and click Remove.

Note that scores cannot be changed from the Edit Competition screen. Click the **Score** button at the top of the screen to swap into 'Scoring' mode.

5.1 Changing start order and flights

There are a number of ways you can change the start order and alter the division of a class into multiple flights. Flights are initially created through the Class Editor (see section 5.8.1), where you set the number of flights and the start number of each flight.

If these are changed subsequently, entrants are simply moved into the correct flight, according to which side of each flight boundary their start number is. If you then edit their start number directly, you can shuffle entrants between flights.

This method is a little cumbersome however. A better way is to use the Flight Editor within the Edit Database screen.



	TScore Us	er Guide	Revision 10.14	
Select Panel and Class	31 Entrants	Day 1 Panel 3 13.00	Trampoline	
Event All - Panel All - Unde	r 11 Girls Novice	▼ Teams	Email Print Score Help Exi	t
Find Competitors Change Flights			Actions	
Pick a class, then drag the Number F entrants to reorder in flight: 11	F2 F3 10 10		Variable flight sizes Randomize Randomize	
Details 3543 0	Flight 1 P1	P2 P3	Total Posn	2
			Recalculate	e

Click the 'Change Flights' tab and select a single class. You are then shown the number of athletes in each flight.

Within the list of entrants, you can now simply drag and drop athletes into whichever start position you wish. When you move someone, they will be put before the athlete you 'drop' them onto.

The effect on the flights in a multi-flight class will depend on the switches to the right. If you select 'Variable flight sizes', then each time you move someone between flights, the flight boundaries will adjust so that no other athlete changes their flight.

Conversely, if you select 'Fixed flight sizes', the number in each flight will stay constant, meaning that athletes on the boundaries will be moved to the next/previous flight as necessary.

Note: This option is not currently available for Artistic Gymnastics or other competitions that use fixed competitor numbering.

5.2 Checking and Changing Teams

From the 'Edit Database' screen, click Teams to display the Team Editor. This gives you a quick way to set up and change the assignment of entrants to teams. It also identifies teams that have an incorrect number of entrants or where a team could be formed but has not been. Specifically, it will detect (a) teams with too few or too many members (b) entrants not in a team when there is space in an existing team for them and (c) where there are enough entrants not in a team to create a new team. Note that it will NOT automatically detect cases where two teams could be made by redistributing existing team members.

lub an	id Class								
Club	The Long Eaton School	All Clu	▼ bs with Team	Class Ur	ider 13 Girls Club	s Novice s with Incorr	ect Teams		Undo Save
	Competitor Name	No Team	Team A	Team B	Team C	Team D	Team E	Team F	Team G
	Amy Lambourne	0	0	0	C	۰	0	0	C
	Amy Large	0	0	e	С	С	0	C	С
	Ashleigh Bird	0	C	0	С	0	0	0	С
	Chantelle Warwick	0	ſ	0	0	C	0	0	0
	Charlotte Harris	C	۲	С	С	С	С	С	С
	Chloe Johnson	0	C	0	0	ſ	C	C	С
	Chloe Mundell	o	0	0	c	0	0	0	0
	Ellen Tweed	e	0	0	c	o	0	o	С
	Ellie Butler	0	0	·	с	0	0	c	C
	Freya Gascoigne	0	0	C	C	·	C	C	С
	Joanna Jackson	0	C	o	e	o	C	C	С
	Kerry Armstong	0	œ	0	C	C	C	0	С
	Molly Till	0	œ	0	С	C	0	C	0
	Olivia Purnell	0	0	e	C	C	0	C	0

When you click on the 'Teams' button, you will see the following screen:

The club name and class lists let you choose which teams to see. By default, you will see Clubs with Incorrect Teams, which may be blank (if your entry forms are correct!). If you click the All Clubs with Teams button, you will see all of the clubs with enough entrants in at least one class to form a team, with both correct and incorrect classes listed. If you click List all Clubs, you will see all of the clubs in the list, regardless of whether they have enough entrants to form a team in any class.

In the main part of the form, the entrants for the chosen club and class are shown, with their team assignments. Any invalid teams will be shown by having a red header. Valid teams have a green header and empty teams are shown in blue. If you click on the team label, its members will be highlighted (as in Team A above).

To change team members, simply click on the button in the desired team column for the entrant. Once you have completed one class, you must click the **Save** button to commit your changes to the competition database. Once you have made changes, the club and class lists are disabled until you either **Save** or **Undo** your changes. The **Undo** button will only cancel the changes that you have made on the form, but not yet **Saved**.

When you have completed your changes, click the **Finished** button that appears in place of the **Undo** button when there are no pending changes.



5.3 Creating a Programme and Checklists

From the 'Edit this Competition' screen, click **Create Checklists** to create the competition checklists. TScore will create checklists for the Chair and Marshals, plus manual recording sheets.

Click Make Programme to generate a list of entrants sorted by class and bounce order, that you can simply paste into your own template for a printed competition programme.

You can control the order in which classes are written to the Programme by using the 'Competition Details form. Simply choose the programme order you want:

Note that all of the files created by the program will appear in a folder called 'CompDocs' below the 'Entries' folder for your competition. These are all in Excel format, so you can edit them directly before printing if you wish.

Discipline :	Trampoline / Tumbling	Artistic C
Discipline .	Tampointe / Tambiing 🐔	
Туре :	BG Artistic 2017	
	Regional ND	P Artistic Gymnastics
		Details
Name :		
Venue :		Date :
Save as :	zzzdemo3	Time: 09.00
Tear	Teams	Rules
Maximum Minimum	competitors in team 6 +	Separate Results per Region 🔽
Max	imum per Apparatus 5 🗧	
P	rinted Programme	Results
Order :	Gender, Age, Grade 🔹	Guest Label : Guest
	Gender, Age, Grade Gender, Grade, Age Grade, Age, Gender	Include guests in rankings
	Grade, Gender, Age Age, Grade, Gender Age, Gender, Grade	

5.4 Changes and late entries

If you have late entrants, simply put them into the LateEntries Excel file,

The next time you create the lists, the late entries will be added directly to the database at the end of their class. TScore will check for duplicates, so you don't need to remove them from the LateEntries file once they have been processed.

Alternatively, you can just add them to the existing entry forms and reprocess – TScore will ask you whether to replace or merge the entries. New entries will be added and you will be prompted for any changes to existing entries.

All changes made to an existing competition may be recorded in either a simple text file or an Excel spreadsheet. This means that you can easily print off a list of updates for each panel for any last minute alterations. See the 'Preferences' option for details.

When a change has been made, simply regenerate the programme and checklists with a single click.

Finally, you may also add entrants directly into the competition from the Edit Competition screen. Fill in the competitor's details and click the Add button.

5.5 **Protecting the database**

Once the competition is set up, you will probably want to set password protection on it. This restricts access to the more destructive options (such as reloading the entry forms or resetting the start order). Simply click the 'Protect' button on the edit screen and give a suitable password of your choice. To change passwords, you will have to give the original password. To remove password protection, just set the new password to be blank.



5.6 Importing a simple list of entrants

If you do not want to use the individual team entry forms, you can instead add competitors to the current competition from a simple 'comma separated' file (with a .csv filename extension).

This is a text file containing information about each competitor, one per line. Each line of information must include their name, club, gender, grade and age group.

It may also include team, BG number and start order. Each value is separated from the next by a comma.

Column Title	Aliases	Description of contents
Club		The name of the club, gym or school
Name		The full name of the competitor
First Name		The first name of the competitor
Last Name	Surname	The last name of the competitor
Gender	Sex, M/F	M, F or X (X for mixed)
Grade		Depends on the competition. Examples "Novice", "H"
AgeGroup	Age	Age group designator - U13, 17+ etc.
Team		Team identifier - A, B C etc
Start		Start order if known
BG	USAG, Number	Competitor or BG membership number
Email		Competitor contact email
Region	State, County	Competitor region or state for combined events
Discipline	Disc	Discipline. One of: TRI, SYN, DMT, TUM

The first line of the file (the 'header row') should contain the following column names -

If preferred, you may supply the Name as two columns instead of one.

First Name	Name	The first name of the competitor
Last Name	Surname	The last name of the competitor

If no header row is present, the following order is assumed -

Club, Name, Gender, Grade, AgeGroup, Team, Start, BG, Email, Region, Discipline

The first 5 columns are mandatory, but can be in any order.

CSV files are easily created from programs such as Excel.

One you have your file, just create a new competition, click the Import/Export button and choose one of the 'Import list of competitors' options. You may either replace all existing entries, or append to them.

It is important that all of the entries in your import file correspond exactly to classes that have been defined for the competition. See the following section on 'Configuring Classes' for full details.



It is also possible to import more sophisticated lists of entrants, such as those from USAG that include multiple disciplines per record. These files should be provided as Excel files (although TScore will swap to this processor if it recognises either a BG or USAG format entry list).

Label	Description
name, firstname, first	Athlete first name or fullname
lastname, surname, last	Athlete last name
club, clubname	Name of club, gym or school
clubabbrev	Short name of club, gym or school
gender, sex, m/f	Gender
grade	Grade
age, agegroup	Age group
class, competitionname	Class name (BG use competitionname)
team	Team letter identifier
start	Start number
bg, number, usag, membershipno	Membership number
athleteid	Athlete identifier / number for this event
membershipstatus	Membership status (current, lapsed etc) - ignored
dob, dateofbirth, birth	Full DoB in the locale of the computer reading the list
email, enteredbyemail	Contact email to use
state, region, county	Used for multi-state meets
disc, discipline	Discipline
entrytype	'gymnast', 'coach', 'judge' (only gymnast is used)
entrystatus	Only 'complete' entries are loaded
teamid	Team ID overrides partnerships
teamname	Name of the team (used esp in WAG/MAG etc)
partnershipid	Used for Pairs / Synchro
partnershipname	Used for Pairs / Synchro
trampoline	Grade for Trampoline entry
tumbling	Grade for Tumbling entry
doublemini	Grade for DMT entry
trampolineagegroup	Age for Trampoline entry
tumblingagegroup	Age for Tumbling entry
doubleminiagegroup	Age for DMT entry

Although TScore works best if the Grade, Age, Gender and Discipline are matched exactly, some formats (e.g. BG GymNet) do not support those fields. Instead, TScore has to try to guess them based on the 'CompetitionName' field. It does this with the assistance of a number of 'Lookup files' – one for each of Discipline, Grade, Gender and Age. There are separate lookup files for UK and USA, all located in the C:\Users\Public\Documents\TScoreX\ClassDefns\Lookup folder.

TScore will check the class names for the key words and phrases that help it to identify a class (assuming a class of that name doesn't exist).

Furthermore, if a matching class isn't found, TScore will try to create it for you. For this, it will copy the class attributes and behaviour settings that it reads from a template class in the database / CDF. This class must be named as "<a pre>apparatus> Template" (e.g. "TRA Template")

Recognised apparatus names are:

TRA, SYN, DMT, TUM, Rhyth, Acro, Pole, P-Bar, Pomm, H-Bar, Rings, Floor, Vault, Beam, U-Bar



5.7 Configuring Classes

TScore includes class definitions for the current (2019) Club, Regional and National NDP Levels for TRA, SYN, TUM and DMT and 'Closed' competitions and BSGA Schools competitions. It also supports USAG grades for the 2019 season. It has an editor that lets you change the classes and then save the modified set as a text file, which you can subsequently pick from a list when you are setting up your next event.

In version 10, ALL class definitions are provided through the external files. You can add your own definition files into the ClassDefns folder. Gymnastics class definitions live in the ClassDefns\Gymnastics subfolder.

Item	Description	Values
Discipline	Individual, Synchro, DMT or Tumbling	TRI, SYN, DMT, TUM
Code	A unique code for this class	Text – e.g. I12, X23
Age	Age group as read from entry form	U11, U15, 15+ etc.
MF	Male or Female	M or F
Grade	Grade code to recognise in entry form	D, E, F etc
Short Name	Short name for this grade	e.g. "15+ Girls H"
Full Name	Full name of this grade	e.g. "Over 15 Girls Club H"
Default Panel	Initial panel to assign	Number 1 to 4
Tariff Round 1	Whether round 1 includes a tariff	Y or N
Tariff Round 2	Whether round 2 includes a tariff	Y or N
Final	Whether a final will be run	Y or N
Zero Final	Whether the final starts from a zero score	Y or N
Qualifying Score	Minimum score needed to qualify for the next grade	Numeric. Can be absolute score - e.g. 49.5 or a percentage of the entrants (< 1). e.g. 0.2
Qualifying Score 2a	Higher score needed to qualify for the next grade	Numeric. Can be absolute score - e.g. 49.5 or a percentage of the entrants (< 1). e.g. 0.2
Qualifying Score 2b	Alternative Higher score needed to qualify for the next grade	Numeric. Can be absolute score - e.g. 49.5 or a percentage of the entrants (< 1). e.g. 0.2
Include Tariff	Whether to include tariff in the qualifying score	Y or N
Relegation Score	Minimum score needed to avoid relegation	Numeric. Can be absolute score - e.g. 40.5 or a percentage of the entrants (< 1). e.g. 0.15
Minimum Entrants	Minimum entrants needed for relegation	Number
Time per Entrant	How much time to allow in the timetabler	Numeric (minutes if < 15, seconds if >= 15)
Requalification	Is there a 'requalification panel'	Y or N
Time of Flight	Does this class have Time of Flight recorded	Y or N
Bonus	Does this class have a bonus score	Y or N
Warmup time	Warmup time per entrant for this class	Minutes (<15) or seconds (>=15)
TieBreak rule	The tie break rule to apply	DF (Default for competition), US (USAG), F9 (FIG 2009), F3 (FIG 2013), NO (None)
Penalty	Does this class have a Penalty score	Y or N
Has Round 2	Does this class have a second round / pass / routine	Y or N
Has Rounds 3	Does this class have a third round / pass / routine	Y or N
Has Round 4	Does this class have a fourth round / pass / routine	Y or N
Tariff Round 3	Does the 3 rd round have a tariff / difficulty score	Y or N
Tariff Round 4	Does the 4 th round have a tariff / difficulty score	Y or N
Horizontal Displacement	Does this class have a Horizontal Displacement score?	Y or N
Maximum E-Judges	How many E-Judges do you require (any less than this will be made up by the average score of those actually recorded). For USAG-JO set this to 3, for non-HD TRA, DMT, TUM, set this to 5. For HD TRA set it to 6. (The adjustment to 4 will be made by whether the panel has electronic HD equipment).	Number 3 to 6

Each class has the following attributes:



5.8 Editing Classes

Once you have created you competition, you can still edit the class definitions, giving you fine control over each of the groups. From the 'Edit This Competition' screen, click on Edit Classes to see the following screen:

💪 Edit Classes																						x
Class Defaults																						
Name DMT NDP 1 W9-10		Full	Name D	MT Le	vel	1 - V	Vome	n 9-1	0				٦	Export	as	DM	T Le	vel 1 - Women 9-	10		Close	
Age 9-10 Gender			Grade NC)P1			Dis	scipline	D	ит			Def	iault Pa	nel [5			NEO	-	Add	5
																, ,			100	Cours	Chang	3
Max E-Judg	es													Tie-bre	ak	Det	ault		•	bave	Change	ER
No. of passes & which have diff score			Features				1				Qu	alifyin	g Scor	es				Time per e	entrant	Sav	e to File	e
	nal 🥅			Pena	Ity Sci	ore 🔽	Ι.	1	00.2	٦	11	10.2		0.0	1.				. .	R	emove	
Difficulty V V V Zero F	inal 🥅			Bonu	s Sco	re 🔽		wer	00.5		per 1	10.5		0.0	F	Requi	re Bot	h Vvarmup	Z mins			
Requa	ify? 🕅						R	elgn	0.0		Ainimu	m Enti	rants	0	In	clude	e Tariff	Total	6 mins	Show Al	Classes	
Current Cattings Use and all	ak in the	loft m	voin to n	iok mu	ltinlo	ماءم	non to	ioin										Lise the Timetable Fr	fitor to char	nge nanels a	nd start fir	nec
Current Settings Use chu ch	sk in the		argin to p	ICK IIIU	iupie	Class	ses to	Join										Use the Timetable Lt	altor to criar	ige pariels a	iu statt un	iies
Entrants 1 Flight 1																			Reset	-) (R	efresh	
Panel 5 Starts at (9.00)																			e l'	5.7	-	51
																			Combine		arge File	
Class	Panel	Age	Grade	Sex	Trf1	Trf2	Final	Zero	Qlf1	Qlf2	Qlf3	Trf	Mins	Ents	T3	T4	Арр	Shortname	Join	Finished	Bonus	L.
DMT Level 1 - Women 9-10	5	9-10	NDP1	F	Yes	Yes	No	No	108.3	110.3	0.0	No	6	1	0	0	DMT	DMT NDP 1 W9-10			Yes	
DMT Level 1 - Men 13+	5	13+	NDP1	м	Yes	Yes	No	No	108.3	110.3	0.0	No	6	1	0	0	DMT	DMT NDP 1 M13+			Yes	ΙI
TRA Level 1 - Women 11-12	3	11-12	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	8	2	0	TRA	NDP 1 W11-12			Yes	+
TRA Level 1 - Women 13+	3	13+	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	14	2	1	TRA	NDP 1 W13+			Yes	\downarrow
TRA Level 1 - Women 7-8	3	7-8	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	3	1	0	TRA	NDP 1 W7-8			Yes	+
TRA Level 1 - Women 9-10	3	9-10	NDP1	-	NO	NO	NO	NO	42.0	45.0	0.0	NO	4	0	0	0	TRA	NDP 1 W9-10			Yes	+
TRA Level 2 - Women 11-12	3	12+	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	11	2	1	TDA	NDP 2 W11-12			Yes	+
TRA Level 2 - Women 9-10	3	9-10	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	2	0	0	TRA	NDP 2 W9-10			Yes	+
TRA Level 3 - Women 11-12	2	11-12	NDP3	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	4	1	0	TRA	NDP 3 W11-12			Yes	+
TRA Level 3 - Women 13+	2	13+	NDP3	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	10	-	1	TRA	NDP 3 W13+			Yes	+
	1 - 1		1	1 1	-				1	1			1	1				1	1	1		۱.

To edit a class, click on it in the list and make your changes in the form above. When you have finished, click Save Changes.

If you want to create new class, simply click the Add button instead.

You may also save the entire set of classes for future re-use, just click Save to file.



Note that the 'Export As' class name must follow strict naming conventions to be accepted by BG for their results coordination service.

Normally, you will only see those classes with competitors. Click the **Show All Classes** checkbox to see all defined classes. You can define up to 360 classes for each competition. You can mix disciplines within one competition provided the total number of classes does not exceed this maximum.

Name The 'short name' for the class, used in tight spaces! Full Name The 'long name' for the class, used where there is plenty of room Export As The official name for the class, used for exporting 'original' classes Gender The gender code (must match the 'Gender' value in import files and entry forms) Grade The grade code (must match the 'Grade' value in import files and entry forms) Aae The age group code (must match the value in import files and entry forms) The class with which this class is to be joined (this is a reversible operation). Combine with Discipline Individual, Syncro, DMT or Tumbling - pick from the list **Default Panel** The default panel to assign this group to. (Can be changed later with the timetabler) Time per Entrant The time in minutes (<15) or seconds (>=15) to allow for each competitor when calculating duration in the timetabler. Warmup and total time can be set. Pass 1 to 4 How many routines/passes this class has Which of the passes have a difficulty (tariff) score Difficulty 1 to 4 Whether this class should run a final (i.e. a 3rd routine for TRA or 3rd & 4th pass for TUM/DMT in Final which not every entrant participates. Zero Final Whether positions in the final just use the scores in the final, or take a cumulative score. Bonus score Does this class have a 'Bonus score' field Penalty score Does this class have a 'Penalty core' field Time of Flight Does this class have a 'Time of Flight' field Horizontal Displacement Does this class have 'Horizontal Displacement' fields Tie Break Which tie-break rules to apply to this class Do we allow a 'Regualification panel' for this class Requalify The maximum number of execution judges expected for this class. If fewer scores are entered, Max E-Judges the missing ones are filled by the average score of the ones actually recorded. Set this to 3 for USAG-JO for example. Score needed in rounds 1 & 2 for promotion. Can be an absolute value, or a percentage of the Qualifying score entrants (enter a value less than 1; for example, 0.15 = top 15%) Include Tariff Whether the tariff counts in the qualifying score **Requires Both** Whether both qualification conditions must be satisfied Relegation Score needed in rounds 1 & 2 to avoid relegation. Can be an absolute value, or a percentage of the entrants to be relegated (enter a value less than 1; for example, 0.25 = bottom 25%) Min Entrants Minimum number of entrants needed for the relegation zone to be applied

The values that you can set for each class are as follows:

Note on combining age groups:

You can combine multiple age groups for the same gender/grade. The original ages are retained in the database should you want to revert. Once you have set the combinations (which are shown in the 'Join' column), you must apply them by clicking the **Combine** button. You can undo this action by clicking **Reset**. This will still retain the 'Join' information you set, but will restore the entrants to their original classes.



If you want to combine boys/girls to run a mixed gender class, you can change the 'target' class to be mixed gender ("X"), then you can add other classes from the same grade, either male or female to this class.

You will usually need to edit the timetable *and* check the teams once this operation has been performed.

From version 9.9.14 onwards, TScore gives you a more flexible way to combine classes. Rather than join to an existing class, this method creates a new class for you. You can of course still 'undo' the merged entrants at any point.

On the Edit Classes screen, select the first class that want to combine (it is best to pick the one whose description and settings are closest to what you want for the combined class). Now, hold down the 'ctrl' key and select the other classes that you want to join by clicking the grey boxes on the left of the list. As you select additional classes, the attributes of the class will highlight in different colors to indicate which values you must change (in Red) in order to create the new composite class.

💪 Edit Classes																						x
Class Defaults																						
Name NDP 1 W9-10		Full	Name T	RA Le	vel 1	L - W	/omer	9-10)				7	Export	tas	TRA	Lev	el 1 - Women 9-	10		Close	
Age 9-10 Gender	F -		Grade N)P1			Dis	scipline	In	dividı	ıal		De	fault Pa	inel [3	•		X17	- <u> </u>	Add	
Combine with Max E-Ju	dges 5						_					_	_	Tie-bre	eak [Defa	ault		•	Save	Chang	es
No. of passes & which have diff score Pass 1 2 🔽 3 🗍 Zen Difficulty 🗌 🗌 Reg	Final	Time of	Features Flight 🔽 Horizonta	Pena Bonu al Displ	ilty Sci is Sco aceme	re V	Lo	ower	42.0 0.0	Upp	Qui er 4 linimur	alifyin 5.0 m Entr	g Scor OR rants	es 0.0 0]	Requir	e Bot Tariff	Time per	entrant 2 mins 4 mins	Sav R Show A	ve to Fili emove II Classes	2
Entrants 6 Flight 1 Panel 3 Starts at <9.00>	Panel	Age	Grade	Sex	Trf1	Trf2	Final	Zero	OIF1	Olf2	Olf3	Trf	Mins	Ents	т3	T4	App	Shortname	Reset Combin	Einished	Refresh erge File	
DMT Level 1 - Women 9-10	5	0-10	NDP1	F	Vac	Vec	No	No	108.3	110.3	0.0	No	6	1	0		ПМТ	DMT NDP 1 W9-10		· · · · · · · ·	Vec	+-
DMT Level 1 - Men 13+	5	13+	NDP1	M	Yes	Yes	No	No	108.3	110.3	0.0	No	6	1	0	0	DMT	DMT NDP 1 MJ3+			Yes	+
TRA Level 1 - Women 11-12	3	11-12	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	8	2	0	TRA	NDP 1 W11-12			Yes	a) I
TRA Level 1 - Women 13+	3	13+	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	14	2	1	TRA	NDP 1 W13+			Yes	T.
TRA Level 1 - Women 7-8	3	7-8	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	3	1	0	TRA	NDP 1 W7-8			Yes	1
TRA Level 1 - Women 9-10	3	9-10	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	6	0	0	TRA	NDP 1 W9-10			Yes	Ĩ.
TRA Level 2 - Women 11-12	3	11-12	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	12	2	1	TRA	NDP 2 W11-12			Yes	T
TRA Level 2 - Women 13+	3	13+	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	11	0	1	TRA	NDP 2 W13+			Yes	Т
TRA Level 2 - Women 9-10	3	9-10	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	2	0	0	TRA	NDP 2 W9-10			Yes	T
TRA Level 3 - Women 11-12	2	11-12	NDP3	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	4	1	0	TRA	NDP 3 W11-12			Yes	T
TRA Level 3 - Women 13+	2	13+	NDP3	F	No	No	No	No	47.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	10	1	1	TRA	NDP 3 W13+			Yes	•

As you change each of the attributes, they will change to blue, indicating that there are no conflicting classes already defined. Note that you may only need to change one of the Grade/Age/Gender identifiers to make it unique. Orange highlight items are advisory – you may want to change these too. Once you have defined suitable class attributes, the Add button will be enabled for you to save the new class.

The new class will be created with a code beginning with "=>". The merged classes will show this code in the 'Join' field. The name of the class to which they are joined is shown in green just above the flight information.

💪 Edit Classes																						x
Class Defaults																						
Name NDP 1 W-U13		Full	Name TF	RA Le	vel 1	- W	omen	UNde	er 13				7	Export	as	TR/	Lev	vel 1 - Women U1	3		Close	
Age U13 Gender F	•		Grade NC)P1			Dis	cipline	In	dividu	ıal		Def	ault Pa	nel	3	•		X17		Add	
Combine with Max E-Judge	es 5						_						_	Tie-bre	ak	Def	ault		•	Save	Change	s
No. of passes & which have diff score Pass 1 2	nal 🔽	Time of I	Features Flight 🕅	Pena Bonu	ilty Sco is Scol	ore 🗸	La	ower 4	12.0	Upp	Qua er 4	alifyin 5.0	g Scon	es 0.0] F	Requi	re Bot	Time per e	entrant	Sav R	ve to File emove	
Requali	ify? 🗖		Horizonta	l Displ	aceme	nt 🔽	R	elgn	0.0	N	linimur	n Entr	rants	0	In	clude	e Tarifi	Total	4 mins	Show Al	II Classes	
Current Settings Some red items Entrants 6 Flight 1 Panel 3 Starts at<9.00>	MUST	be cha	inged to	o mak	æaı	Jniqu	ıe cla	ss. Yo	ou sho	ould (chang	je or	ange	item	s to	0	Se	t panels and time	Reset Combine	he Timet	able Ed i Refresh erge File	
Class	Panel	Age	Grade	Sex	Trf1	Trf2	Final	Zero	Qlf1	Qlf2	Qlf3	Trf	Mins	Ents	тз	T4	Арр	Shortname	Join	Finished	Bonus	1
DMT Level 1 - Women 9-10	5	9-10	NDP1	F	Yes	Yes	No	No	108.3	110.3	0.0	No	6	1	0	0	DMT	DMT NDP 1 W9-10			Yes	-
DMT Level 1 - Men 13+	5	13+	NDP1	м	Yes	Yes	No	No	108.3	110.3	0.0	No	6	1	0	0	DMT	DMT NDP 1 M13+			Yes	[
TRA Level 1 - Women 11-12	3	11-12	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	8	2	0	TRA	NDP 1 W11-12			Yes	
TRA Level 1 - Women 13+	3	13+	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	14	2	1	TRA	NDP 1 W13+			Yes	
TRA Level 1 - Women 7-8	3	7-8	NDP1	- F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	3	1	0	TRA	NDP 1 W7-8			Yes	
TRA Level 2 - Women 11-12	3	11-12	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	12	2	1	TRA	NDP 1 W9-10			Ves	•
TRA Level 2 - Women 13+	3	13+	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	11	0	1	TRA	NDP 2 W13+			Yes	F
TRA Level 2 - Women 9-10	3	9-10	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	2	0	0	TRA	NDP 2 W9-10			Yes	F
TRA Level 3 - Women 11-12	2	11-12	NDP3	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	4	1	0	TRA	NDP 3 W11-12			Yes	t_
TRA Level 3 - Women 13+	2	13+	NDP3	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	10	1		TDA	NDD 2 14/12 1				

When you click the Add button, the new class will be created automatically with a special class code beginning with "=>", indicating that it is a composite class. This code will be shown in the 'Join' field. When you select one of the joined classes, the actual name of the class to which they have been joined is shown in green just above the flight information. Entrants are not yet moved into the new class.

ć	Edit Classes																						×
CI	lass Defaults																						
	Name NDP 1 W11-12		Full	Name T	RA Le	evel :	1 - N	/omer	n 11-1	12				1	Export	as [TRA	Lev	vel 1 - Women 11	-12		Close	
	Age 11-12 Gender F	•		Grade NC)P1			D	isciplin	e In	divid	ual	•	Det	fault Par	nel	3	•		X26		Add	É.
Con	nbined with =>137 • Max E-Judge	es 5													Tie-bre	ak	Defa	ult		•	Save	Chang	Jes
No	o. of passes & which have diff score			Features								Qu	alifyind	1 Scor	es				, Time per e	entrant	Sav	e to File	e
Pa	ass 1 2 🔽 3 🔽 👘	nal 🔲	Time of I	Flight 🔲	Pena	alty Sc	ore 🔽	í .		42.0	1		5.0	-	0.0	1.		_		2	R	emove	
Di	ifficulty	inal 🗌			Bon	is Sco			elan	42.0	Upp	er 🕞	D. Entr	ants	0.0		(equin	e Boti	h vvarmup		Show Al	Classes	
	Requal	ity?		Horizonta	ii Disp	acem	ent jv	. I		0.0					-		ciuue	arm		•	Show A	r classes	
C	urrent Settings 🛛 🤇 Th	nis clas	ss has	been co	mbir	ned i	nto:	TRA L	evel	1 - W	omer	u Und	er 13	3				Se	t panels and time	es with t	he Timet	able Ed	ditor
En	Entrants 8 Flight 1 Reset Refresh																						
	Panel 3 Starts at<9.00>																			Combin	36	orgo Eik	5
																				Combine		erge rik	
	Class	Panel	Age	Grade	Sex	Trf1	Trf2	Final	Zero	Qlf1	Qlf2	Qlf3	Trf	Mins	Ents	тз	T4 /	App	Shortname	Join	Finished	Bonus	L.
	DMT Level 1 - Women 9-10	5	9-10	NDP1	F	Yes	Yes	No	No	108.3	110.3	0.0	No	6	1	0	0	DMT	DMT NDP 1 W9-10			Yes	17
	DMT Level 1 - Men 13+	5	13+	NDP1	м	Yes	Yes	No	No	108.3	110.3	0.0	No	6	1	0	0	DMT	DMT NDP 1 M13+			Yes	
	TRA Level 1 - Women 11-12	3	11-12	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	8	1	0	TRA	NDP 1 W11-12	=>137	<u>\</u>	Yes	
	TRA Level 1 - Women 13+	3	13+	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	14	4	1	IRA	NDP 1 W13+			Yes	
	TRA Level 1 - Women 7-8	3	7-8	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	3	1	0	FRA	NDP 1 W7-8	=>137		Yes	
	TRA Level 1 - Women 9-10	3	9-10	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	6	<mark>/</mark> >	0	FRA	NDP 1 W9-10	=>137		Yes	TI
	TRA Level 2 - Women 11-12	3	11-12	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	12	2	1	FRA	NDP 2 W11-12			Yes	TI
	TRA Level 2 - Women 13+	3	13+	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	11	0	1 1	FRA	NDP 2 W13+			Yes	ΤI
	TRA Level 2 - Women 9-10	3	9-10	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	2	0	0	IRA	NDP 2 W9-10			Yes	T I
	TRA Level 3 - Women 11-12	2	11-12	NDP3	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	4	1	0 1	IRA	NDP 3 W11-12			Yes	T
1	TRA Level 3 - Women 13+	2	13+	NDP3	F	No	No	No	No	47.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	10	1	1 1	TRA	NDP 3 W13+	1		Yes	+ →

The combined classes behave the same as age-group joined classes. Click **Combine** to move the entrant from each merged class into the new class. Click **Reset** to reverse the operation.

Note that it is best to use an age group or grade identifier for your new class that will not match the values on your entry forms. Any processed forms will put the entrants into the correct 'original' classes; you just need to remember to re-combine them.

Revision 10.14

💪 Edit Classes																						×
Class Defaults																						
NDP 1 W11-12		Full	Name T	RA Le	evel :	1 - W	/omei	n 11-1	12				7	Export	as	TR/	A Lev	vel 1 - Women 1	1-12		Close	
Are 11-12 Gender	F.		Grade NI	DD1			7 0	isciplin	o In	divide	u a l			ault Pa	nel	2	-		X2	- =	٨dd	3
	•								- 11		uai	-			[<u>э</u>			~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~	, <u> </u>	Add	3
Combined with =>137 • Max E-Jud	ges 5													Tie-bre	ak	Det	ault		•	Sav	e Chang	es
No. of passes & which have diff score			Features				1				Qu	alifyin	g Scor	es				Time pe	r entrant	Sa	ve to Fil	e
	inal 🔲	Time of	Flight 🥅	Pena	alty Sc	ore 🔽	1		42.0	-			1 - 1	0.0	1				2		Remove	
Difficulty Zero	Final 🥅			Bonu	us Sco	re 🔽		ower	42.0	Upp	er 4	5.0		0.0	- F	Requi	ire Bot	h Warmup	Z mins	·		
Requi	alify? 🔲		Horizonta	al Displ	lacem	ent 🔽	R	telgn	0.0	•	/linimu	m Ent	rants	0	In	nclud	e Tariff	i 🔽 🛛 Total	4 mins	Show /	All Classes	
													_								and the set	
Current Settings	Current Settings This class has been combined into: TRA Level 1 - Women Under 13 Set panels and times with the Timetable Editor																					
ntrants 0 Flight 1 Reset Refresh																						
																				32		31
																			Combin	e	lerge File	e
Class	Panel	Age	Grade	Sex	Trf1	Trf2	Final	Zero	Qlf1	Qlf2	Qlf3	Trf	Mins	Ents	тз	T4	Арр	Shortname	Join	Finished	Bonus	L_
TRA Club 2 - Women 7-8	4	7-8	CLB2	F	No	No	No	No	45.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	0	0	0	TRA	CLB 2 W7-8			Yes	+
TRA Club 2 - Women 9-10	4	9-10	CLB2	F	No	No	No	No	45.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	~	0	0	TRA	CLB 2 W9-10			Yes	
TRA Level 1 - Women 11-12	3	11-12	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	0	0	0	TRA	NDP 1 W11-12	=>137		Yes	
TRA Level 1 - Women 13+	3	13+	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	14	2	1	TRA	NDP 1 W13+			Yes	
TRA Level 1 - Women 7-8	3	7-8	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	0	0	0	TRA	NDP 1 W7-8	=>137		Yes	+
TRA Level 1 - Women 9-10	3	9-10	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	0	0	0	TRA	NDP 1 W9-10	=>137		Yes	+
IRA Level 1 - Women Under 13	3	013	NDP1	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	<u>"</u>	1	2	IRA	NDP 1 W-013			Yes	+
IRA Level 2 - Women 11-12	3	11-12	NDP2	F	No	No	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	12	2	1	TRA	NDP 2 W11-12			Yes	$+ \parallel$
TRA Level 2 - Women 13+	3	13+	NDP2	F	NO	NO	No	No	42.0	45.0	0.0	No	4	11	0	1	TDA	NDP 2 W13+			Tes	+
TRA Level 2 - Women 7-8	3	7-8	NDP2	F	NO	No	No	NO	42.0	45.0	0.0	NO	4	2	0	0	TDA	NDP 2 W7-8			Vec	+-
I A A POPP / - Wilmen G-TU			and by		- 140	- 140	- 140	- 10	-47.0			- 60					IRA	NUTE 7 074-111		1	1144	•

5.8.1 Flights

If there are more than 10 entrants in a class, TScore will offer to split the class into flights. Up to 11 flights may be defined. When you click on each of the 'Flight' check boxes, you can enter the 'Split' competitor count, which determines the number of entrants in each of the flights.

С	rrent Settings Use cntl click in the left margin to pick multiple classes to join Set panels and time												es with t	he Timet	able Edi	itor							
E	ntrants 119 Flight 1 2 🔽 15	3 🔽	29	4 🔽 43	5		57	6 🔽	71	7 🔽	85	8 🔽	99	9	v 11	3 1	0 🔽	12	7 11 🗖	Reset	R	efresh)
Panel 3 Starts at 9.00 at 9.30 at 10.00 at 10.25 at 10.55 at 11.25 at 11.55 at 12.20 at 12.50 at 13.20 Combin												e Me	erge File	Ō.									
	Class	Panel	Age	Grade	Sex	Trf1	Trf2	Final	Zero	Qlf1	Qlf2	Qlf3	Trf	Mins	Ents	тз	T4	Арр	Shortname	Join	Finished	Bonus	L_
►	Under 14 Girls Novice	3	U14	Novice	F	No	Yes	No	No	3.0	0.0	0.0	No	150	119	8	17	TRI	U14 Girls Novice		Yes	No	
	Under 19 Girls Novice	3	U19	Novice	F	No	Yes	No	No	3.0	0.0	0.0	No	220	51	2	7	TRI	U19 Girls Novice		Yes	No	Γ
	Von 7 Cirls Novico	2	VD7	Novico	E	No	Vac	No	No	20	•••	• •	No	150	0	•	Δ	TDT	V7 Ciele Novico	111.4	Var	No	Г

The actual number you enter is the *first* competitor to bounce in that flight. If you want 10 in each flight for example, set flight 2 to 11, flight 3 to 21 etc. Times are rounded to the nearest 5 minutes. TScore will suggest appropriate split points for you when you pick the flight indicator.

TScore suggests the number of flights for you. If you simply click on the box for the number of flights you want, TScore will fill in all the intermediate split points to achieve roughly equal numbers in each flight, with a lower number in the final flight if necessary to allow for late additions. If you uncheck a flight, all the higher flights will be cleared. Clearing flight 2, then clicking the number of flights you want is a quick way to reset to the automatic values.

5.8.2 Saving and Reusing Class Definitions

If you choose to save the class definitions to file, TScore asks you for a file name and a description of the class set. It then saves the definitions to a file of the given name in the 'ClassDefns' folder. The next time you use the 'New Competition' option, your saved class set will appear in the 'Competition Type' picklist for you to select directly.

A class definition file is a simple text file that relies on column position to identify each field. This means that it is also possible to edit your classes directly in the file if you're feeling brave!

5.9 Changing Age Groups

You should use the 'Combine Age Group' option in the Class Editor to adjust age groups as this is easily reversed and adjusted dynamically. The previously available 'Alter Age Groups in Entry Forms' is no longer supported.

5.10 Enhanced Qualifying Score definition

Since v10.0.41, TScore has an improved way to define Qualifying / Mobility scores.

It can handle the following conditions:

- Single, double or 4 round scores
- Combinations of Execution, HD, Bonus and Difficulty scores
- Finishing position
- Difficulty only
- Combining two conditions with AND / OR
- Lower and Upper qualification rules (or Mobility / Qualify)



The section on the Class Editor form is fairly self-explanatory, but note the following:

- Enter a number less than 10 for a position
- Prefix a number with 'd' for difficulty
- Use '%' for a percentage position
- Click the AND/OR to change it
- Check the 'Include' boxes on the right to include Bonus, HD or Difficulty
- The value you enter will be interpreted intelligently (well, I think it's clever) to decide whether you are counting 1, 2 or 4 rounds.



5.11 Editing Clubs

The Edit Clubs option on the main screen lets you change the shared details for all members of a club in one operation. You can edit the club name, short name and email addresses. Team suffixes are automatically retained if you change the short name. In addition, TScore displays the number of entrants and officials together with the number of entrants who have withdrawn or whose classes have finished. It also shows how many certificates have been printed for each club.

💪 Edit (Clubs												×
Club	Detail	5											Close
Name	Dynan	iite Gy	mnastics			Short Name	Dynam	iite GC		State	MD	-	
Email	anon@	myclub	.orf										Save Changes
Total I	Entrants: Officials:	59 0	Certificate	Finished: es Printed:	0 0	Withdrawn: Entr	0 ants with	Still to Compete: no email addresses:	59 3		All Clubs Completed Clubs Clubs Still to Complete Clubs Monding Cartificates	• • • •	Fix Emails
360iGy APEX Bull Ru Capita Chesa Dream Dulles Dynam Dulles Dynam Elite T Fairlan Fearle Fights FreeSt FreeSt Garder Garder Jersey KMC D Jersey KMC D Jersey KMC D VM-BC F Metrop Motion Novak OCSC/ Pittsbu Presto Shine Silver Subu	m In Acade Gymna Gymnas ic Gymn ite Acad Gymnas ite Acad Gymn ss Flyer Cool T2 ate Gymn Ss Flyer Gymnas Jets Gy ance an Flip Ove olitan E Sports I Sports Stars G Gymnas Stars G Gymnas Stars G Gymnas	emy of N stics N yymnas stics (titics Action astics astics S astics C rampo astics 1 titics C astics C rampo astics (titics C astics C rampo astics (titles S astics C astics C astics C rampo astics (titles S astics C astics	Gymnasti lational Tr titos LLC Center cademy f Gymnas demy demy demy demy demy center, LLC line Acad nc. enter ics Inc. nastics Co mnastics i conter Inc. and Fun Center Inc. and Fun Academy tics Acade inter ics Training	cs raining Ce tics tics enter & Athletic: Gymnastic emy Center	s-DC								

You can choose whether to list all clubs, clubs whose members have all finished competing (or withdrawn), Clubs that still have members to compete and clubs who have finished but still have certificates to be printed.

If you select one of the options that lists completed clubs, a 'Print Certificates' button will appear. Clicking this takes you directly to the Edit Database screen with a filter set for the currently selected club and automatically selects the Print Certificates option for you.



By default, certificates will NOT be printed twice for a given entrant. This can be overridden in the Print Option screen if necessary.



5.11.1 Email settings for athletes

TScore offers a very flexible capability to assign a list of email addresses to each entry for each athlete. This lets you, for example, email individual parents or athletes their own roster with start times, or their results.

To do this, the email addresses are usually included with the entry forms or imported list of athletes.

In cases where this is not possible, there are other options available.

You can set the email address list for all athletes in the club by setting the address in the Edit Clubs screen, and then saving the changes. This will also set the default email address list for that club, so that any subsequent entries will use that address for emailing if they do not have one set explicitly.

There will still be some cases however where individual entries can have no email address assigned them (if they have been added or changed manually in the Edit Database screen from example).

This is where the Fix Emails option comes in handy. Click this to see the number of missing email addresses for the currently selected club and for the whole competition.

🖶 Fix club email addresses		×
Repair missing emails for this club		Close
'Fix Emails' will try to find an email address for athletes in this club who do not have an email	this club and apply it to any address assigned to them.	Fix Emails
Current club: Dynamite Gymnastics		
Fix Dynamite Gymnastics only	Entrants: 59	Entrants without emails: 3
C Fix All Clubs	Entrants: 1338	Entrants without emails: 37

When you click 'Fix Emails' on this screen, TScore will try to find a valid email entry for the club by first checking to see whether a default has previously been set and, if not, looking for an athlete from that club who does have an email address list set. If it finds one, then all athletes from that club who do not currently have an email address, will be set to that value.

If you select the 'Fix all clubs' option, this operation will be applied to all clubs in the competition, selecting an email address appropriate for each club.

It is possible to set a default email address for clubs in the ClubNames.txt lookup file in the C:\Users\Public\Documents\TScoreX\Templates (or TemplatesUSA) folder. An example line in this file is: Fairland Gymnastics > Fairland > fairland2@mygymclubs.org

This file is always loaded when you run up TScore, and provides default short-name and email for any clubs that are not explicitly set.

Program Preferences

Clicking the 'Preferences' button lets you configure a number of aspects of TScore.



Most of these are self-explanatory or have been discussed in the preceding sections. The purpose of each setting is described below for completeness.

Entry Processing

Entry Processing

- Apply 'name case' to entrants 🔽
 - Apply 'name case' to clubs 🔲
 - Check for extra officials 🔽
- Check duplicate competitor numbers 🔲
 - Include Guests in Teams 🛛 🔽
 - Guests bounce first 🛛 🔽
 - Changes bounce first 🔲
 - Save changes to an Excel file 🔲
 - Save changes to a text file 🔲
 - Number of competitors in final 8 -

How entry forms and manual changes are handled

Change entrants' names to capitalise first letters Change club names to capitalise first letters Ignores big gaps in entry forms Report entrants with the same competitor number Guest entrants are included in teams (school zonals!) Guests are first in the bounce order (school zonals!) Late changes / additions bounce first in a class Record any changes to an Excel log file Record any changes to a text log file How many qualifiers progress to finals

Display

Bold text labels	
Time of Flight	☑
Bonus Scores	
Penalty Scores	
Show secondary HD scores	•
Show Competitor Numbers	
Show average E-Score for AG	☑
Zero score interrupted R and C	•
Show Date of Birth	•

Show fixed start numbers 🔽

Control some aspects of TScore display

Make labels bigger and bolder to assist reading Show the Time of Flight field for those classes needing it Show the Bonus field for those classes needing it Show the Penalty field for those classes needing it Show the averaged HD score if manual recording is used Show BG / USAG numbers on the Competitors screen Display SWESCORE export codes – never used now! Record a zero score if an R &C routine is interrupted Show the DoB on the Edit Competitor screen Use fixed, assigned start numbers rather than random

Judging

Execution judges panel 1	3 +
Execution judges panel 2	3 ÷
Execution judges panel 3	3 ÷
Execution judges panel 4	3 ÷
Execution judges panel 5	3 ÷
R and C Judges	3 ÷
Automatic zero moves	V

Judging panels

Number of execution judges present on Panel 1 Number of execution judges present on Panel 2 Number of execution judges present on Panel 3 Number of execution judges present on Panel 4 Number of execution judges present on Panel 5 Number of Range and Conditioning judges present (if zero, R&C options are hidden on the scoring form) Whether to set 'Moves' to 0 if all zero scores are entered Whether to withdraw or set zero moves for non-scoring entrants when 'forcing' the completion of a class

Timing

Force withdraw non-scorers

Judging panels

Default warmup time per entrant (before 2nd bed adjustment) Number of execution judges present on Panel 2





Miscellaneous settings

Choice of UK or US terminology

If entrants are within this margin of qualifying, they are eligible for the requalification panel. This is no longer permitted in BG regional events, but might be useful elsewhere.

Printing										
Printer 1	Dell C1760nw Color Printer on Ne06:									
Printer 2	default 🔹									
Printer 3	hp LaserJet 1010 HB on Ne04:									
	New Checklist Page per Session Include Finals in Checklists									
One ro Two rou	Entrants per page of results ound: 18 Inds: 16 Four rounds: 12									

Printer settings

You can choose which printers are used for what purpose. Not that if you reboot or plug cables in differently, you may have to change these. TScore will warn you on startup is a printer is missing.

Print each flight on a new page

Add an extra row to record finals

Use these to fine-tune pagination for printed results. Adjusting these is necessary for some printer and page size combinations.

Database and Network											
Root folder for Configuration Files	S:\VB Proj	jects\TScore10									
Temp folder: S:\VB Projects\TSc	ore10\Tes	sting\Formal\UK-NDP-2018\Temp									
Detelor	postares	Decement postares									
Database connection username	posigies	Password posigies									
Use Server Database Cursors		Use database competition folder 🗌									
Database connection timeout	10 ÷	Only list database servers 🛛 🔽									
Server detection timeout	2 🕂	Verify each database in list 「									

The database section deserves a little more discussion, though you should not normally need to change the default settings. When you click the 'Connect' button to attach to a competition database, TScore tries to list the competitions on the server that you used most recently. If you click the 'List All' button though, it will search the network for other servers. If the 'Only list database servers' is checked, TScore will try to detect a database on each machine it finds (this can be time consuming).

Similarly, when TScore lists the competitions on the chosen server, it can verify that each one is really a TScore database. This is not normally necessary, unless you are also using the database for other purposes and want to avoid accidentally picking an invalid database.

The timeout values are in seconds, and tell TScore how long to wait before giving up on a remote connection. If your network is particularly troublesome, you may want to increase these values.

TScore will normally use 'Client Database Cursors', as these reduce the load on the server. If you have a slow network or client PC, you can choose the 'Use Server Database Cursors' option to improve the speed of that PC.

The Qualification Panel Margin determines how close to qualification competitors must be to be eligible for a 'requalification panel'. This is no longer permitted in BG regional events, but might be useful elsewhere.

6 Running a Competition

For competition organisers

The big day has arrived, your competition database is all set up, but there is still work for the competition organiser to do at the event. TScore and its companion product VScore can help to smooth the running of the competition by automating many of the tasks that would otherwise demand much of your time throughout the day.

You can make rapid changes to the list of entrants (using the Edit Entrants options described in the previous section). TScore will record all such changes for you, so you can print off a list of late changes for the marshals and superior judges.

You can track the progress of the competition through the 'Status' screen. This lets you know when you can print off results and which panels are running early or late.

ė	Competition Status Report														
C	Class Details														
N	ame Over 15 Boys Regional	Е					Status :	Not St	arted	*	Panel 1 : (On Sch	edule	Clo	se
Р	anel: 1 Entrants: 4						Start :	08:58			Panel 2 : (On Sch	edule	View 9	Scores
S	cores Recorded: Set: 0	Vol:	0								Panel 3 : (On Sch	edule		\equiv
	ast Score Recorded at :		Time n	ow • 1	6-01-08	Planned	Finish -	14.08			Panel 4 · ()n Sch	edule	Print R	tesults
-															
	Set Printed: No		Time of Rep	oort : 1	6:00:33	Expected	Finish :	14:08			Panel 5 : (Jn Sch	edule	Refr	esh
	Class	Panel	Planned Start	Plan Mins	Planned Finish	Total Entries	Set	Vol	Final	Final	Last Undated	Mins	Finished	Expected Finish	Printed
	Under 15 Girls Regional D	1	08:58	78	14:08	13	0	0	0	Yes	opuacea	78	0%	14:08	
	Over 15 Girls Regional D	1	08:58	66	14:08	11	0	0	0	Yes		66	0%	14:08	
	Under 15 Boys Regional E	1	08:58	8	14:08	2	0	0	0	No		8	0%	14:08	
	Under 15 Boys Regional D	1	08:58	6	14:08	1	0	0	0	Yes		6	0%	14:08	
	Over 15 Girls Regional E	1	08:58	68	14:08	17	0	0	0	No		68	0%	14:08	
	Over 15 Boys Regional E	1	08:58	16	14:08	4	0	0	0	No		16	0%	14:08	
	Under 15 Girls Regional E	1	08:58	44	14:08	11	0	0	0	No		44	0%	14:08	
	Over 15 Boys Regional D	1	08:58	24	14:08	4	0	0	0	Yes		24	0%	14:08	
	Under 15 Girls Regional F	2	08:58	28	10:22	7	0	0	0	No		28	0%	10:22	
	Under 15 Boys Regional F	2	08:58	4	10:22	1	0	0	0	No		4	0%	10:22	
	Under 13 Girls Regional F	2	08:58	20	10:22	5	0	0	0	No		20	0%	10:22	
	Under 13 Boys Regional F	2	08:58	4	10:22	1	0	0	0	No		4	0%	10:22	
	Under 11 Girls Regional F	2	08:58	8	10:22	2	0	0	0	No		8	0%	10:22	
	Over 15 Girls Regional F	2	08:58	20	10:22	5	0	0	0	No		20	0%	10:22	
	Under 9 Girls Regional G	3	08:58	4	13:38	1	0	0	0	No		4	0%	13:38	
	Over 15 Girls Regional G	3	08:58	56	13:38	14	0	0	0	No		56	0%	13:38	
	Under 11 Girls Regional G	3	08:58	16	13:38	4	0	0	0	No		16	0%	13:38	
	Under 13 Girls Regional G	3	08:58	64	13:38	16	0	0	0	No		64	0%	13:38	
	Under 15 Girls Regional G	3	08:58	60	13:38	15	0	0	0	No		60	0%	13:38	
	Over 15 Boys Regional G	3	08:58	24	13:38	6	0	0	0	No		24	0%	13:38	
	Under 11 Boys Regional G	3	08:58	12	13:38	3	0	0	0	No		12	0%	13:38	
	Under 13 Boys Regional G	3	08:58	16	13:38	4	0	0	0	No		16	0%	13:38	
	Under 15 Boys Regional G	3	08:58	20	13:38	5	0	0	0	No		20	0%	13:38	
	Under 15 Boys Club H	3	08:58	8	13:38	2	0	0	0	No		8	0%	13:38	
	Under 9 Boys Club H	4	08:58	8	14:18	2	0	0	0	No		8	0%	14:18	
	Under 11 Boys Club H	4	08:58	20	14:18	5	0	0	0	No		20	0%	14:18	
	Under 13 Girls Club H	4	08:58	96	14:18	24	0	0	0	No		96	0%	14:18	
	Under 9 Boys Club I	4	08:58	12	14:18	3	0	0	0	No		12	0%	14:18	
	Under 13 Boys Club H	4	08:58	16	14:18	4	0	0	0	No		16	0%	14:18	
	Under 13 Boys Club I	4	08:58	4	14:18	1	0	0	0	No		4	0%	14:18	<u> </u>
	Under 11 Girls Club I	4	08:58	4	14:18	1	0	0	0	NO		4	0%	14:18	
	Under 11 Girls Club H	4	08:58	56	14:18	14	0	0	0	NO		56	0%	14:18	
	Under 9 Girls Club H	4	08:58	20	14:18	5	0	0	0	No		20	0%	14:18	
	Under 9 GINS Club I	4	08:58	4	14:18	1	0	0	0	NO		4	0%	14:18	<u> </u>
	Under 15 GIMS CIUD H	4	08:58	56	14:18	14	0	0	0	NO		56	0%	14:18	
	Under 13 Girls Club 1	4	08:58	4	14:18	1	0	0	0	NO		4	0%	14:18	<u> </u>
	Over 15 Girls Club H	4	08:58	20	14:18	5	0	U	0	NO		20	0%	14:18	

Finally, you can plug a projector into a computer running VScore and let it automatically deliver a highly professional live display of the latest results. You can even insert your own messages and images into the live display for those useful silent announcements (the default is 'No Flash Photography Please!').



6.1 **Printing Results and Certificates**

You can print results from either the Scoring screen or the Competition Status screen. Choose the class to print and click the Print button:

🖒 Print Options		— ×—
• 1 Number of copies	✓ Preview the printed items	Print
Results		Cancel
Print Team Results		
Checklists		
Print Chair's Checklist	Print Marshall's Checklist	
Print Manual Recording Sheet		
Certificates		
Print All Certificates	Print Certificates without scores	
Print Qualifiers' Certificates	Reprint previously printed certificates	

Choose the documents you want to print, set the number of copies or choose to preview the output instead. Checklists and Results use an Excel template, which you can customise if you wish. (Keep the row and column positions the same, but change colours, graphics etc. as you desire).

Certificates use a Word template with bookmarks to substitute the event, venue, date, competitor, club, score, class and position. You can either print the entire certificate on demand, or for speed and economy, just print monochrome text on a pre-printed certificate background.

TScore puts its default templates into the folder C:\Users\Public\Documents\TScoreX\Templates. However, these templates are overwritten when you install an updated version of TScore. If you want to change your default templates, you can copy them into the folder C:\Users\Public\Documents\TScoreX\MyTemplates instead, and alter them there. These will not be overwritten,

but you may not fully benefit from new program features in some cases where these rely on new templates.

Further, you can copy a set of templates into specific competition folders.

For example: S:\Competitions\2017\RegChamps\Entries\Templates. This means you can set up precisely the formats you want for each event.



Changing the Print Templates

The TScore file templates can be found in the C:\Users\Public\Documents\TScoreX\Templates folder. Take a safe copy before editing them!

Filename	Purpose	Reserved	Cells
PrintTemplate (Excel file)	Excel spreadsheet with two worksheets - one for Individual and one for Team	A2 C2 J2 A5 to M5 A7 to M11 A7 to M7 A8 to M8 A9 to M9 A10 to M10 A7 to M12	Competition name Venue Date Column headers repeated on each page Copied for each individual competitor Name, Club, Score and Position Round 1 scores Round 2 scores Round 3 scores Copied for each team

PrintTemplateSYN (Excel file) Excel spreadsheet with one worksheet for Synchronised results	A2 C2 J2 A5 to O5 A7 to O11 A7 to O7 A8 to O8 A9 to O9 A10 to O10	Competition name Venue Date Column headers repeated on each page Copied for each individual competitor Name, Club, Score and Position Round 1 scores Round 2 scores Round 3 scores
---	---	--

ChecklistTemplate (Excel file)	Excel spreadsheet with 4 worksheets. Each sheet has control cells in row 1 that should not be changed Recorder sheets are 1 round per row.	Z1 AA1 AE1	Template Version Number Rounds per row (Recorder only) Last column to copy (Recorder only)				
	Marshal	A1 to M1 A2 A3 to M3 Remainder	Title Class Name Column headings Values inserted as necessary				
	Chair	A1 to G1 A2 A3 to G3 Remainder	Title Class Name Column headings Values inserted as necessary				
	Recorder (individual)	A1 to S1 A2 A3 to S3 Remainder	Title Class Name Column headings Values inserted as necessary				
	Recorder (synchronized)	A1 to U1 A2 A3 to U3 Remainder	Title Class Name Column headings Values inserted as necessary				

	Excel spreadsheet with 4 worksheets. All same as Checklist apart from the Recorder, which has 2 rounds in a single row. This is unsuitable for events with Horizontal Displacement.	A1 to M1 A2 to M2 Remainder	Title Column headings Values inserted as necessary
ChecklistTemplateSingle (Excel file)	Recorder (individual)	A1 to X1 A2 A3 to X3 Remainder	Title Class Name Column headings Values inserted as necessary
	Recorder (synchronized)	A1 to R1 A2 A3 to R3 Remainder	Title Class Name Column headings Values inserted as necessary

Certificate	Word document for	Club	The full club name of the competitor				
(Word file)	Use the following bookmarks to	Name	The name of the competitor				
	substitute the actual values from TScore:	Grade	Their competing grade				
	Note that there are additional	Score	Their score				
	configuration options for	Place	Their finishing position				
	support for information on how	Date	Date of the competition				
	automatically substitute key	Competition	Name of the competition				
	phrases such as 'Place', 'Competed' , 'Qualified', 'Team Event' etc.	AfterClass	'Class' or 'Team' (if not an individual entrant)				
		Qualified	'Qualified' or 'Finished'				
ExportTemplate.xlsx	plate.xlsx Full results export as an Excel spreadsheet. Contains 4 worksheets - Individual, Teams, Synchro and one to list class definitions						

6.2 Checklist Template

In the same C:\Users\Public\Documents\TScoreX\Templates folder, you will find the Checklists.xlsx file, which is used as the template for your checklists. Here is one sheet for each of the Chair, Marshals, Recorders and Sycnhro recorders (as the format here is different). However, you can also add discipline-specific templates for Chair and Marshall sheets – just copy the one you want and name it 'Chair-TRI', 'Chair-DMT', 'Chair-TUM', 'Marshal-TRI', 'Marshal -DMT' or 'Marshal -TUM'. You can then change headers and column widths.

On the top row of each sheet, you will see some 'layout' flags that you can set. The cells take the following values:

1Z	This is the template version number – best not to change this, as it affects auto hiding of columns.
1AA	Rounds per row – on recorder sheet, this lets you choose one or two rounds for each row of the checklist. Set it to 1 or 2. Note that 2 may be cramped for most events.
1AE	Last column to print – this is used to set the print area in excel
1AH	Set this to 'Y' to tell TScore to use the row heights in your template rather than enforce its default sizes.

6.3 Exporting Results

At the end of the competition you can take a safe copy of the database for archiving and also generate a full set of results in Excel format for publishing.

Click the Import / Export button

The Excel Export option processes all results and highlights qualifying and relegated competitors.

You may change the presentation format of the spreadsheet by editing the Export Template file.

The ability to report the date of birth in the results is included for the convenience of submitting official results to the national scores coordinator. It is strongly advised that you do NOT publish sets of results with this information included for reasons of data protection and privacy.





If you have combined age groups to make reasonable sized competition classes, but qualifications are done by strict age group (as per UK NDP grades), then checking the 'Original Age Groups' box will assign each entrant and their score to their original (un-merged) age group.

Copying the competition database can only be performed on a computer that has the database server software installed (this need not be the 'live' server however).

The standard 'Export Results to Excel' option gives a complete, formatted highly presentable output, with highlighted qualifiers, separate sheets for each discipline and lots of additional information.

6.4 Requalification Panels

This is a very rarely used feature and can be safely ignored by most customers!

Some grading events allow a 'requalification panel' at the end of the day, where entrants who narrowly missed a qualifying score are allowed to repeat one of their routines in front of a senior panel of judges to see whether they can improve their marks and therefore qualify. TScore can automatically create this special class for you, and copy eligible entrants into it.

For this to work, you must:

- (a) set the Qualification Panel Margin in Preferences to a suitable value (the default is 0.5). This means that anyone who did not qualify but whose score was within this margin of the qualifying score will be copied into the requalification class.
- (b) Set the classes that allow requalification in the Class Editor.by checking the 'Requalify? Box (as shown in the Rq column also)
- (c) Once all of the main classes have completed, click the Requalification Panel button on the Edit Competition screen

You can now go to the Scoring screen, where the new class will be listed as "* Requalification Panel".



Each eligible entrant will have been copied into this class. In doing so, their Competitor (BG) Number will be prefixed with a 'Q' and their original competing grade will be show in brackets after their name.

When scoring this special panel, the scoring requirements will alter as you pick each entrant (e.g. whether a tariff is needed). Positions will be shown but should be ignored. The competitors original scores will be left as they are – these are effectively treated as completely different entrants, but with the scores from their first attempt already copied into the new class, so that each person can choose whether to repeat their set or voluntary routine.

On completion, exporting the scores will list the requalification class entrants twice; once in their original classes with their original scores, and again in the requalification class with their revised scores. In the requalification class, the export will include their original short class name..

6.5 DMT and Tumbling

TScore supports Double Mini-Tramp and Tumbling events as well as Trampoline. The only real difference is that these disciplines have a Qualification / Final structure with 2 passes in each, making a total of four rounds of scores to record for individual competitors. (Team events still have a single final pass). All rounds have a tariff.

When TScore shows the scores for a DMT or TUM class that is designated as having a final, it will show 4 rows of score input boxes and shuffle the competitor list down a bit to make room. The rest of the scoring behaves identically to the Trampoline recording.

💪 NDP	1-7 DMT	Pre-quali	fier Loug	ghboroug	jh Sun 8t	h Novemb	er												- [
Sele	ct Pane	and Cl	ass																D	IT .
Panel	All -	DMT L	evel 1 -	Wome	ns 13+		•	:	3 Entra	ints	P1 9	0.00		0	Finish	Print	Edit	Help) E	xit
<< (< Gymnast 2 >> Kelly Payne * Rank order Final Final																			
				Cha	arnw	boo								Aut	osave [N	/ithdra	w
Move	Scores												Qu	alifying	Score 27.	2:27.2			R and	с
		E1	E2	E3	E4	E5						Bonus		Move	es Exec	ution	Total	Overa		Posn
Clear	Pass 1	9.6	9.5	9.6	9.5	9.4									28	3.60 2	8.600	28.0	500	1
Clear	Pass 2	9.2	9.0	9.1	9.0	9.1									27	7.20 2	7.200	55.8	300	2
Clear	Pass 3	9.5	9.4	9.5	9.4	9.5]		28	3.40 2	8.400	84.2	200	1
Clear	Pass 4	9.5	9.5	9.5	9.5	9.5							Ī		28	3.50 2	8.500	112.	700	1
Na	me						Club						- Start	Ps 1	Ps 2	Ps 3	Ps 4	Total	Posn	w
Ge	orgina (Goldswo	orthy				Charnwood						786	28.50	28.40	0.0	0 27.90	84.80	2	
Ke	lly Payn	e					Charnwood						840	28.60	27.20	28.4	0 28.50	112.70	1	
AIS	sia Kirby	/					Charnwood						885	27.30	27.90	0.0	27.40	82.60	3	

Printing and Exporting results is the same as for Trampoline events, but there is a separate template for printing and separate export worksheets for DMT, Tumbling and their team events.

6.6 Acrobatic Gymnastics

TScore supports Sports Acro scoring too. This is currently a 'beta' capability as we run trials for it at real events. The scoring is slightly different, having separate judges for execution and artistic, with penalties from difficulty judges and the chair being included.

Single round and multi-round (balance, dynamic, combined final) classes are supported.

Please contact us if you would like to try this functionality, so that we can guide you through aspects of TScore specific to this discipline.

💪 Acro	001 <	Competit	ion Venue	> <com< th=""><th>npetition [</th><th>Date></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>×</th></com<>	npetition [Date>													×
Select	lect Panel and Class 4 Entrants Day 1 Panel 1										Tin	ne TB	A			A	cro		
Event	ent Acro Panel All All Classes Finish Print Edit Help Exit												Exit						
<< Gy	Gymnast 2 >> Sam and Dave Rank order Final Z																		
				Pvr	amid									Autosave				Withdra	aw
				Fx	ecution a	nd Artistic sco	res						Qualify	ing Score	70.0			R and	С
		E1	E2	E3	E4	Etot	A1	A2	A3	A4	Atot		Diff	D-Pen	C-Pen	Total	0	verall	Posn
Clear	R1	7.80	7.90	7.70	7.70	15.500	6.90	6.80	6.60	6.80	6.800		3.4	0.5	0.7	27.900	2	7.900	2
Clear	R2	7.60	7.60	7.50	7.50	15.100	7.70	7.80	7.70	7.60	7.700		2.3	1.2	0.8	28.600	5	6.500	2
Clear	Final	8.10	8.20	8.30	8.40	16.500	7.10	7.20	7.30	7.40	7.250		2.5	3.2	0.9	26.850	2	6.850	2
Name	e				Class			Clu	ıb			Star	rt R1	R2	R3	Total	Posn	Grade	Wd
Fred					NDP1 M	Groups		Py	ramid				29	.98		29.98	1	NDG1	
Sam Eric	and D and Ei	ave mie			NDP5 M NDP5 M	Pairs Pairs		Py Dy	ramid namo			100) 27. l 30.	.90 28. .35 31.	60 26 60 31	.85 83.35 .30 93.25	2	NDP5 NDP5	
Mega	an and	Perdie			NDP5 F	Pairs		Py	ramid			102	2 31.	90 33.	60 34	.80 100.30	1	NDP5	

6.7 Pole Sports

TScore supports IPSF Pole Sports scoring too. This is currently a 'beta' capability as we run trials for it at real events. The scoring is slightly different, having 9 or 11 separate deductions for compulsory elements, a compulsory element deduction, bonus scores, artistic score and a chair's penalty.

Single round and preliminary + final class formats are supported.

Please contact us if you would like to try this functionality, so that we can guide you through aspects of TScore specific to this discipline.

🔄 Neverland Finals Exhibition Centre 12 May 2018						- 🗆	×
Select Panel and Class 4 En	trants	Day 1 Panel 1	9.00am			Pole	
Event All - Panel All - Elite Women Juni	or	•	Finis	h Print	Edit	Help	Exit
Compared a second secon			Rank order Autosave Qualifying Score	70.0	Final 🗖 Z	Withdra R and	aw C
C1 C2 C3 C4 C5 C6 C7	C8 C9 C10	C11 Dedn	Bonus Art Pr	lty	Com Elem	Total	Posn
Clear Prelim 0.5 1.3 1.4 0.7 0.8 0.7 0.7	0.6 0.7 1.3	1.6 1.2	4.0 15.8 1	.0	10.3	27.7	1
Clear Final 0.6 0.7 0.7 0.8 0.8 0.6 0.7	0.7 0.7 0.8	0.8 0.6	5.0 16.7 0	.0	7.9	29.0	1
Name	Club		s	tart Prelim	Final T	otal Posn	Wd
Heidi Smith	Uk Northern			05 27.70	29.00	56.70 1	
Sarah Smith	Uk Southern		0	06 23.90		23.90 2	
Jenny Brown	Uk Southern			07 19.30		21.30 3	

6.8 Artistic Gymnastics

TScore supports men's and women's artistic gymnastics scoring too. This is currently a 'beta' capability as we run trials for it at real events. Please see the separate user guide for artistic gymnastics and contact us if you would like to try this functionality, so that we can guide you through aspects of TScore specific to this discipline.

7 Installation and First Use

7.1 Computer Requirements:

TScore is designed to run on Windows PCs. It has been tested on Windows XP, Vista, Windows 7, 8.1 and 10. Pretty well any PC built since 2003 should cope with it! Current development is on Windows 10, with occasional testing on Windows 7 and XP.

IMPORTANT!

You **must** have a copy of Excel installed on your PC for many of the features; in particular, entry processing, timetabling and exporting. Excel 2010 has been used for most of the testing, though older version should also work (esp 2007). Excel 2016 is ok too but has not been tested by the author.

To print Certificates you will need Word. This has been tested with Word 2003, 2007 and 2010.

To send emails you will need Outlook. This feature has been tested with Outlook 2007 and 2010. Some changes to your security settings in Outlook may be necessary to allow programmatic control.

Most of the computers at a competition will not need MS Office, unless they are printing or exporting results. Cheap copies of older Office versions can be obtained on eBay!

7.2 Concepts

TScore uses a SQL database server to record the entrants and scores for all of your competitions. Each competition is created in its own named database.

It is important to note however, that there is not necessarily a separate file on the server for each of these. To backup or copy a competition you must therefore use the 'Export' option to produce a file, then 'Import' it to another TScore system. Importing and Exporting the database can only be performed on computers that have the database server software installed, even if the database itself is on a remote computer.



TScore uses a PostgreSQL database, which is freely available and requires no additional licensing. It is best to use the version that has been tested with TScore although others may work. Installing the database tends to be the most complex part of the setup unfortunately, but if you get stuck we can run a remote online support session to fix most problems. TScore will automatically check for versions 8.3, 9.2 - 9.7 and 10

Scoring updates the database server directly when you click the 'Save' button for each competitor. When you start scoring a competitor, their current scores are read from the database.





There is currently no record locking, as the same competitor is not expected to be bouncing on more than one panel at the same time. This does mean that if two computers should attempt to record scores for the same competitor at the same time, the values entered by the last one will overwrite the values of the first one, (as you would expect).

Competition entry forms are in Excel format and designed to be simple to use. Unfortunately, this means that they are quite complex internally, as age groups and other clever picklists need a few cunning expressions to make them work smoothly for the person filling them in. For this reason, the worksheets are 'locked' for those parts that should require no changes. The password for locked sheets is 'barani' – but we recommend that you re-lock the sheets before sending them out to avoid people accidentally breaking them.

Competition documents are produced in Excel format - this includes the timetable, programme, checklists and results.

The presentation of Checklists and Results can be changed by altering their associated Excel templates. This means that you can change colours, column widths, images, text fonts and sizes if you feel so inclined. You must however preserve the rows and columns as they are defined in the templates.



At most competitions more than one computer is used to record scores – one per panel is normal. The computers are therefore networked together so they can share a single database in which all of the results are recorded. TScore just needs a TCP/IP connection to communicate with its database. Since a true database server is employed, network failures should not cause any more than a temporary interruption, rather than the database locking and corruption problems prevalent in other products that rely on file sharing to operate.

7.3 Installation Sequence

The recommended sequence of installations is:

- 1. PostgreSQL Server
- 2. TScore / VScore (combined installer)

Note that earlier versions of TScore relied of a third component, the PostgreSQL Client Connector. This is no longer necessary.

7.4 PostgreSQL Database Installation

You must install the PostgreSQL Server program on your 'master' database server. It is advisable to install it on client computers for us in case of network hardware failure.

IMPORTANT FOR INSTALLING POSTGRESQL:

You **MUST** install PostgreSQL to a folder other than one in "C:\Program Files" or your desktop. See the separate document on 'Troubleshooting PostgreSQL' for details.

We recommend creating a folder called 'C:\Postgres' for the sake of consistency.

TScore should work with most versions of PostgreSQL, but testing has been performed primarily on versions: 9.6.1 and 10.1. We recommend 9.6.1 for now, so the installation screens below relate to that.

7.4.1 PostgreSQL SERVER Installation

Run postgresql-9.6.1-1-windows.exe

or postgresql-9.6.1-1-windows-x64.exe

according to whether you have a 32-bit or 64-bit version of Windows.

You may see this installer first – this is needed to install some Microsoft runtime components.



Then you see the actual PostgreSQL installer:



Click Next



Setup	– 🗆 X	🗃 Setup	- D X
Advanced Options		Installing	
Select the locale to be used by the new database duster. Locale [Default locale]		Please wait while Setup installs PostgreSQL on yo	ur computer. Installing 9.6/pgAdmin 4\docs
stallBuilder <a>StallBuilder < Back Next	t > Cancel	InstallBuilder	<back next=""> Cancel</back>

8

During installation, you may get warnings from your firewall (screens will vary depending on what firewall you have installed). You must allow network access for the Postgres services (port 5432).

ZoneAlarm Security Alert SERVER PROGRAM	ZoneAlarm Security Alert NEW PROGRAM pg_ctl - starts/stops/restarts the PostgreSQL server is	ZoneAlarm Security Alert NEW PROGRAM psgl - the PostgreSQL interactive terminal is trying to
Identification: Not available in ZoneAlarm Application: postgres.exe Source IP: 0.0.0.Port 5432 More Information Available:	trying to access the Internet. Identification: Not available in ZoneAlarm Application: pg_ctt.exe Destination IP: 127.00.01:Port 5432 More Information Available:	access the Internet. Identification: Not available in ZoneAlarm Application: psql.exe Destination IP: 127.0.0.1:Port 5432 More Information Available:
This is the program's first attempt to access the Internet. SmartDefense Advisor Want to have fewer alerts? Find out how.	This is the program's first attempt to access the Internet. SmartDefense Advisor More Info i Want to have fewer alerts? Find out how.	This is the program's first attempt to access the Internet. SmartDefense Advisor More Into J Want to have fewer alerts? Find out how.
Remember this setting.	Remember this setting.	Remember this setting.

9



UNCHECK 'Launch Stack Builder' and click Finish (You don't need any of the additional tools it offers)

7.5 **TScore Installation**

Installing TScore should be simple – just run 'setup.exe' and follow the instructions on screen. However, you will have to install a database before you can use TScore – see the PostgreSQL installation section later in this document for information on this. Here are the screens you'll see during installation.


7.6 Creating Your First Competition

The very first time you run TScore, there are a couple of steps you need to go through to set it up. The following sequence assumes that you have got Excel installed on your computer, as it is needed to process the entry forms.

(If this is not the case, you can still use TScore with some restrictions:

download a sample database file from: <u>http://tscore.co.uk/Downloads/Sample1-2009-06-06-14-30.tsc</u>

and import that via the 'Import / Export' option instead of step 6.

Or

Create a csv file according to the instructions given earlier and import this at step 6.)

Run TScore by picking the TScore option from the Start Menu or desktop icon:

🎕 Windows Movie M	These POP its Wand Day, Canvaerter	•	
🥰 Jasc Paint Shop Pro	m Pressureller Toolbar	. Startup	 Without, April
VScore 9 PG	Treat Indialacta	Trestations	 AVE Press 8.5
	m mean	T-Score	🕨 🜔 T-Score 🛛 ce Liv
		Contraction	 Ittegertfielder
	m General	wides Develoader	 Eightforlike Devent 0
	Consider Tarath	Misiaber's Transpoline	 Eduare Pro
		Minut al	۲
All Programs 🜔		Mindave Grap	
		internet per	•
		CONTRACTOR OF CONTRACTOR	•
🌆 start 🛛 🥭		i winda	•



Connect to Competition Connection Details	Competitions		
Server : List All Logon : Postgres Password : postgres		Conner 3. Refresh I	Pull down the list of servers.
Competition Details Name : <name></name>		4. yo	. Pick the one you want to use (normally our local machine if this is the first
Type of Competition : <type> Venue : <venue> Date : <date></date></venue></type>		in ty	stallation). If you can't see yours, try ping in '127.0.0.1'
No of Competitors :		Cance	

TScore tries to list databases on the chosen server. If there aren't any, it will offer to install some demonstration competitions for you. This is the best way to go!

- 5. Click Yes and then wait for a minute while the demo databases are installed
- 6. Now pick one of the competitions to explore what TScore can do

Current Competition					
Server: VIRG08	Database : zzztest222		screen, with the Entries folder set to the		
	My First Competition	Change Database	sample provided with TScore		
Home	Today				
Competition Entry Forms			You can now just explore the various		
S:\VB Projects\TScore10\Samples\Starter		Change			
List of entry forms - double click to view	Messages Compet	tion : NDP Trampoline	scoring and configuration options.		
	1: New Competition Change Details Edit Database 2: Process Entry Forms Show Trophies Edit Classes 3: Edit Timetable Show Timetable Edit Clubs	нер	7. Click the 'Process Entries' button to see how entry processing is done.		
	4: Make Programme Show Programme Requalification				
	5: Make Checklists Show Checklists Show Changes	Preferences			
	Import / Export Competition Status Score	Exit			

TScore User Guide

Revision 10.14

Score - Trampoline Competition Organiser and Scoring Program						
Current Competition						
Server: VIRG08	D	atabase: zzztest222				
	My First Competition					
Home	Home Today					
Competition Entry Forms						
S:\VB Projects\TScore10\Samples\Starter			•	Change		
List of entry forms - double click to view	Messages		Competition	: NDP Trampoline		
Cruisers 2017.xlsx (18)		38 TRA, 0.5VN, 0.DMT, 0.TUM, 0.FHY, 0.MAG, 0.WAB, 0.ACR All entrants have been loaded info zzatest222 The list of trophies needed has been written to Timetable The competitor list sorted by class has been written to Programme				
	1: New Competition	Change Details	Edit Database	Help		
	2: Process Entry Forms	Show Trophies	Edit Classes			
	3: Edit Timetable	Show Timetable	Edit Clubs	5		
	4: Make Programme	Show Programme	Requalification			
	5: Make Checklists	Show Checklists	Show Changes	Preferences		
	Import / Export	Competition Status	Score	Exit		
Version 10.0.0 15/01/2017 00:49:03	Licensed to CHRI	S until 30-Apr-2030	<∟14 C	hris Edwards ©2007-17		

8 Help!

If you need any further help or advice, please visit the TScore website <u>http://tscore.co.uk</u> for the latest information and updates.

You may also email support@tscore.co.uk

A TScore User Forum and Knowledge Base are available on the website, and the Facebook TScore User Group is a great way to meet other users and exchange hints, tips and ideas.

Recent Changes

- Added a description of the new Flight Editor tab on the Edit Database screen
- Added information about email options
- Extended the clubs editor to repair missing emails
- Added information about Acro and Pole Sports beta capability